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Our vision

O u r Va l u e s

To be an integrated energy and grain-based foods

Our tradition of partnership and shared success

system innovatively linking producers with consumers.

Building lasting and rewarding customer relationships
Managing our business with the highest integrity

Our m ission

Being responsible stewards in our communities

To grow company profitability and stakeholder value.

Our people and their innovative spirit

This document contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 that are based on management’s
current expectations and assumptions. These forward-looking statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ
materially from the potential results discussed in the forward-looking statements. The company undertakes no obligations to publicly revise any forward-looking
statements to reflect future events or circumstances. For a discussion of additional factors that may materially affect management’s estimates and predictions,
please view the CHS Inc. annual report filed on Form 10-K for the year ended Aug. 31, 2009, which can be found on the Securities and Exchange Commission
web site (www.sec.gov) or on the CHS web site www.chsinc.com.

Top, from left: CHS President and
CEO John Johnson with some of our
2009 interns. Mark Schwanbeck and
Mark Honsey, Farmers Co-op Elevator,
Rushford, Minn.; Kevin Rademacher,
CHS Crop Nutrients; and Greg Smith,
producer. Vladimir Bovin of Agrico in a
south Russia field. Bottom, from left: Oleg
Kolisnyk and Iryna Sizonchik, CHS Kiev,
Ukraine; Nikolai Chepurko and Aleksander
Kuzmenko, Urozhayninskiy KHP and Yuri
Sidorenko, CHS Ukraine; Producer Tim
Chamberlain and Ben Bakko, Wabash
Valley Grain, LLC; Tim Novak, Cofina
Financial, LLC.
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can you see it?
there in the
distance?
Th a t p o i n t o f l i g h t o n t h e h o r i z o n i s t h e f u t u r e

At CHS, even as we dedicate ourselves to serving you each
day, we’re always looking ahead to ensure we can continue
meeting the needs of our member-owners, customers and
other stakeholders.
We know the rapidly evolving global marketplace means what
works today may not work tomorrow. Whether we’re considering
the needs of stakeholders in Kansas or Kiev, we’re constantly
seeking new perspectives and new approaches.
We’re pleased to share the strides we’ve made in 2009 as we
grow our energy, grains and foods businesses, and add value
here at home and around the world.

Leadership Letter

putting things
into perspective
It depends on where you stand. Your perspective on the 2009 CHS fiscal
year hinges on your vantage point. Viewed simply as a comparison of
earnings from two consecutive years, it might be easy to consider 2009
disappointing when measured against the record results of fiscal 2008.
But let’s take a broader perspective.
When we wrapped up fiscal 2008, the world was catching
its breath as prices for energy, grain and crop nutrients
— commodities that make up the core of our business —
reached unprecedented heights. Historically high 2008
CHS revenues and earnings were certainly influenced by
those forces. As the new fiscal year began, it became clear
that commodity markets had reached their peaks and
were declining rapidly. Add to that the weakening global
and domestic economies at the time, and it was easy to
predict that fiscal 2009 would be very different from 2008.
Twelve months later, fiscal 2009 is history. As we report
CHS financial results, we do so with the satisfaction that
we achieved marks ahead of our own projections in an
environment that challenged industries, economies
and consumers across the board. For fiscal 2009, our
earnings were $381.4 million, down 53 percent from a
year ago, on revenues of $26 billion. While not a record,
those earnings mark the fourth-best year in our nearly
80-year history, maintaining our long track record of
stability and financial performance.
As we see it, our diverse business portfolio, solid balance
sheet and unwavering commitment to returning value to
our stakeholders combined to make fiscal 2009 a very
solid year. Most of our business operations achieved
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earnings ahead of expectations and several recorded
their best or second-best years ever. Among them were
our energy business — particularly refined fuels, propane and lubricants — as well as oilseed processing
and related foods businesses. Our locally controlled
retail operations performed extremely well and, despite
a weaker global economy that curtailed demand, our
grain marketing business generated excellent results.
Certainly, some areas of our business were extremely
challenged, most notably our wholesale crop nutrients
operations. Unprecedented volatility in this business
resulted in record values in 2008, followed by severely
reduced demand and a precipitous drop in commodity
prices. This led to unprecedented inventory devaluation
and resulted in a significant loss for this business in
2009 on the heels of record earnings in 2008. Viewed
over a two-year period, crop nutrients continue to be an
excellent business for CHS. Still, while the conditions
driving this market are beyond our control, we’ve made
it a priority to explore and, whenever possible, implement ways to better manage our risk in this business
and assist our customers in managing their risk.
From our perspective, one of the most important things
we can accomplish is returning value for our owners. In

$381 million

CHS achieved its
fourth-best net income
in its nearly 80-year history amid
volatile global economic conditions
john Johnson

fiscal 2009, based on our record results for fiscal 2008,
we returned a record $347 million to our owners in the
form of cash patronage, equity redemptions, preferred
stock and dividends. And while not at the record levels
of the past few years, in fiscal 2010 we expect to return
an estimated $220 million to our owners.
While an annual report must take a rearview-mirror
perspective, our eyes are always on the horizon. For
nearly three years, our ongoing 2020 Vision project has
focused our planning initiatives, added insight on how
our businesses must be managed to succeed within
a wide range of environments and, most important,
shaped our direction. Within this report, we’re showcasing examples of real-world progress on our five primary
business objectives, success stories made possible by
strong relationships with stakeholders across the United
States and around the world.

michael ToElle

you stand, one thing remains constant. CHS is committed to being a strong organization that adds value
for our customers, our owners, our employees and our
stakeholders.
Any way you look at it, that’s the measure of our
success.

John D. Johnson

President and Chief Executive Officer

Michael Toelle

Conditions change. Every year has its own story. We
all have a unique perspective. But no matter where

Chairman, Board of Directors

N e t INc o m e
dollars in millions

3 81. 4

09

803.0

08

7 5 6 .7

07

505.4
255.6

O
P
F

06
05

3

b u i l d i n g t h e chs b r a n d

studying up
for the future
For Kansas State University senior Ashley Guenther,
the future is full of possibility, thanks in part to CHS.
She earned a cooperative studies scholarship and served
as a CHS marketing communications intern. Kansas State
is just one institution supported by the CHS University
Partnership program with scholarships and funding
for educational programs and activities.

Ashley Guenther, shown near Kansas State University’s Hale Library, is among thousands of students each year who are supported along
their career paths by the CHS commitment to building vibrant rural communities. K-State’s agricultural programs are among several across
the heartland that are part of the CHS University Partnership program, which includes scholarships, resources for special programs, links
to internships, support for the 25-year-old Arthur Capper Cooperative Center and more.

M a k i n g s t r at e g i c ac q u i s i t i o n s

calming markets
and waters
After three decades in crop nutrients, Jeff Kuhn knows
supplying cooperatives and producers is a game of minutes
and cents. Acquiring CHS Winona River & Rail terminal at
Winona, Minn., was an important step in a volatile market,
bringing in nutrients on the Mississippi River and moving
them to customers via rail and truck.

Jeff Kuhn is general manager of CHS Winona River & Rail, a facility strategically positioned to supply crop nutrients to customers across
more than a 100-mile radius. In fiscal 2009, CHS acquired the 16-acre facility, which includes 90,000 tons of dry storage and receives
about 170 barges of product annually.

growing our global footprint

crop to crop
country to country
From this soybean field in Ukraine’s Crimea region, Sergey
Lebedev can touch the world. A CHS regional manager
in this Black Sea nation, he is the on-the-ground connection
with producers and grain elevators. Adding production of
wheat, other grains and oilseeds expands the CHS global
platform to better supply customers worldwide year-round.

To serve customers year-round and keep U.S. grain producers competitive, new global grain sources are essential. Over the past 18 months,
CHS has opened an office in Kiev, Ukraine; established eight regional branches, including Lebedev’s; added personnel in south Russia;
established joint ventures to access critical Black Sea ports in Odessa, Ukraine, and Novorossiysk, Russia; and built relationships with
inland grain facilities in the region.

m a x i m i z i n g c u rr e n t b u s i n e ss e s

delivering
energy to burn
At Parker Gas Co., Newton Grove, N.C., little things —
and big things — make the difference. Daren and David
Parker count on CHS for a steady stream of propane
with a personal touch to supply their thriving RapidXChange
cylinder refill business, as well as agricultural and other
bulk-fuel customers.

As stewards of a 50-year-old family business located in North Carolina’s agricultural heartland, the Parker brothers know relationships and
dependability reign. In five years as CHS customers, they’ve learned to count on support from their account representative and consistent
product supply to behind-the-scenes help from the CHS Propane Control Room,™ credit and accounting. The result: a growing family
business for the Parkers and opportunity for CHS to expand in the southeastern United States.

cr e a t i n g e n t e r p r i s e v a l u e

backed by a
team of experts
John Bender knows that today’s complex agricultural
environment requires good partnerships. The Huntingburg,
Ind., general manager works with CHS operations, including
Ag States Group/Daeske Agency, Country Hedging,
Cofina Financial, Business Solutions Consulting and the new
Wabash Valley Grain, LLC, joint venture, which form a total
enterprise that understands all aspects of his business.

Superior Ag and CHS recently formed Wabash Valley Grain, LLC, providing both partners with essential access to global markets via the
Ohio and Mississippi rivers and the Gulf of Mexico. Superior Ag’s support team includes, from left, Nate Durako, Wabash Valley Grain; Rick
Small, Ag States Group/Daeske Agency; Don Phelan, Country Hedging; Ben Bakko, Wabash Valley Grain; and Ron Sibert, CHS Business
Solutions Consulting. Not pictured: Tim Novak, Cofina Financial.

Review of Operations

energy
With tempering prices, wary consumers and pending
climate change legislation generating wide debate, the
CHS energy group saw fiscal 2009 as a year of solid
achievement. Additional retail outlets, strong demand
for propane and completion of years of refinery improvements put CHS in the lead of the industry based on
nearly every performance measure.
Economic pressures reduced nationwide gasoline consumption by 5 percent and diesel fuel consumption by as
much as 12 percent. Yet CHS retail fuel sales increased,
signifying customer confidence in the Cenex® energy
brand and supporting CHS efforts to attain new retail
sites through cooperatives and independent chains and
grow volume at existing sites.
In mid-2009, CHS converted more than 30 Cenex Kum
& Go® convenience stores to the Cenex Zip Trip TM brand.
All CHS-owned convenience stores will carry the Cenex
Zip Trip brand to enhance awareness and recognition.
Rebranding efforts, with site upgrades to all Cenex
convenience stores, completed the second year of the
three-year initiative. The fresh look and clean appearance at more than 900 locations at the end of fiscal 2009
helped draw attention and customer loyalty to stores.
Cenex credit cards and gift cards played more significant roles in profitability for many retail locations in late
calendar 2008. As consumer budgets tightened, gift
cards became the perfect way to give fuel, groceries
and other household necessities, and were much easier
to wrap! Seasonal promotions helped retailers capitalize on this new demand to increase in-store traffic and
enhance customer loyalty.
All companies handling credit card transactions and customer data will be required to adhere to new processes
as of July 2010, but CHS reached that milestone three
years earlier. A new Cenex fleet card lets businesses
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use a single card for fuel purchases and equipment
maintenance and repair. Reporting provided through
CHS will help fleet managers control expenditures.

Productivity enhancements
Completion of the new coker at the Laurel, Mont., CHS
refinery in 2008 exceeded expectations with new production records. Reduced refined fuels demand and
proposed climate change regulations make recent
improvements at Laurel and the National Cooperative
Refinery Association facility at McPherson, Kan., even
more critical as the CHS system strives to maintain costeffective supplies of refined fuels, lubricants, propane
and other refinery products in fiscal 2010 and beyond.
The lubricants business faced significant challenges
during the year as energy prices dropped quickly.
Wholesalers chose to carry limited inventory to protect
against price devaluation, while fleet owners increased
intervals between oil changes to reduce costs during the
general economic downturn. The CHS team developed
creative purchase incentives to keep lubricant products
moving into retail chains and sustain customer relation
ships. New customer relationships with farm store
distributors, lubricant blenders and equipment manufacturers increased product volume sales in segmented
markets and extended the geography reached by Cenex
lubricants and the Farm-Oyl® brand. The network of lubricants terminals placed strategically throughout the CHS
trade area helped manage supply and distribution more
effectively, benefiting both retailers and the company.
Introduction of environmentally friendly Maxtron® Enviro
Edge will provide vehicle operators with improved fuel
economy and reduced greenhouse gas emissions.
The Cenex Total Protection Plan™ warranty program,
which protects owners of vehicles that use Cenex

35
million
miles in 2009

transporting more
than 200,000 loads to
customers

lubricants and Cenex premium diesel fuel, added online
accessibility in 2009, made possible by web site technology advances across the CHS corporate system. The
easier access, plus stronger communications to and
by Cenex lubricants retailers, resulted in a 40 percent
increase in use of the program.
The CHS propane business achieved record earnings,
fueled in part by cool, wet fall weather, which increased
demand for propane to dry grain and heat homes and
businesses. Competing fuels and energy efficiency
dim prospects for home heating market growth, but
CHS is extending its sales area east and southeast of
the traditional Midwest region, as well as looking for
new markets for CHS-affiliated retailers, such as using
propane as a fleet and personal vehicle fuel. Continued
emphasis on reduced greenhouse gas and other emissions is raising awareness of the benefits of propane.
In early fiscal 2009, credit concerns and economic
challenges among CHS wholesale propane customers
highlighted the value of a dependable, stable supplier.
Strong, fair credit policies and financial strength helped
CHS gain market share during a period of unprecedented market volatility. Aggressive forward contracting
programs marketed in a consultative manner increased
sales and customer loyalty, while providing the tools
retailers needed to navigate volatile markets.
CHS transportation maintained its reputation as a truly
dependable supplier, putting customer needs first,

accepting wait times and driving additional miles to meet
demand for products delivered on time. In 2009, the
national economic downturn combined with major shifts
in pricing and supply of all energy products, especially
ethanol, created a significant shift from a period of limited truck availability to excess capacity. Transportation
teams adjusted assets as needed to meet the new reality
while maintaining exemplary customer service.

Driving to serve
The CHS fleet traveled nearly 35 million miles in 2009,
transporting more than 200,000 loads to customers.
Continued transition to electronic onboard and dispatch
communications technologies provided more real-time
location information and load data to enhance on-time
delivery. The safety and compliance group stepped up
its initiatives to provide safety training for drivers and
operations personnel.
CHS Renewable Fuels Marketing links ethanol manufacturers with blenders, which includes providing the
ethanol and biodiesel blended in fuels at CHS terminals. CHS also sources corn for ethanol producers and
markets distillers dried grains, a byproduct of ethanol
production and a valuable feed ingredient.
New agreements boosted total volume marketed and a
new ethanol terminal in Birmingham, Ala., helped increase
the area served by CHS Renewable Fuels Marketing.

Top, left to right: Daren Parker, Parker Gas Co., Inc., discusses company supply needs with D.J. Williams, CHS propane sales
manager, and Darin Hunhoff, vice president, Propane. The Parker brothers’ thriving RapidXChange cylinder business serves
retail customers in North Carolina and four surrounding states. The region’s tobacco growers count on propane to cure the crop.
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ag business
The tremendous commodity price rollercoaster experienced in fiscal 2008 gave way to a significant drop in
prices in 2009, and with the change came different challenges. While the view from the top was unsettling, the
sharp decline provided a completely new and equally
difficult perspective.
Despite these price fluctuations, the global demand for
grains continues a long-term upward trend, matching
increased populations and growing desire for higherquality food in developing countries. With these trends
on the horizon, CHS took numerous steps to ensure that
its producer-owners remain competitive in the world
year-round and to meet the needs of its growing number
of global grain customers.
CHS grain marketing activities gained momentum
around the world through expansion in Brazil, China and
the Black Sea region. While economies faltered in many
countries, rapidly growing agricultural regions in South
America and the Black Sea region, plus rising demand
in China helped CHS complete a successful year and
build even stronger partnerships in those regions. At
year-end, CHS announced its investment in an Odessa,
Ukraine, grain export facility with GN Terminals, adding
shipping capacity of 2 million tons. CHS will manage
part of the terminal’s capacity, allowing it to manage its
own rail cars, trucks and ships. CHS also formed the
ACG joint venture with Agrico Group, based in Moscow,
Federal Republic of Russia, to manage origination, logistics, export and worldwide marketing of Russian wheat,
feed grains and potentially oilseeds.

CHS continues to grow its grain platform in Brazil
through Multigrain AG, a diverse agricultural joint venture company. Multigrain is focused on expanding its
grain origination and export facilities; production enterprises in soybeans, corn, sugar cane and cotton; and
processing operations. Both CHS and joint venture
partner Mitsui & Co., Ltd., slightly increased investment
in Multigrain in fiscal 2009 and now each owns 39.35
percent of the organization.
Near the close of the fiscal year, CHS and Mitsui
announced plans to fund improvements at another joint
venture, United Harvest, LLC, updating export facilities
at Kalama, Wash., with expanded and enhanced railcar
handling. The project, expected to be completed in
early fiscal 2010, will double handling capacity at the
site. CHS also gained eastern Corn Belt grain-gathering
capacity on the Ohio River at Evansville, Ind., partnering with Superior Ag.

Managing risk
Crop nutrients sourced and marketed by CHS help U.S.
crop producers optimize production and maintain soil
fertility season after season. With record-high prices in
2008, many producers used fewer crop nutrients and
held off on applications after harvest in late 2008. That
left wholesalers and retailers with high-cost inventories
in spring 2009, even while the market price for crop
nutrients was falling rapidly. Wet, cool spring weather
that delayed or prevented planting in some areas of
the Corn Belt put even more strain on crop nutrients

Top, left to right: Greg Smith, a producer-director for Farmers Co-op Elevator, Rushford, Minn., harvests his 2009 crop. CHS
Crop Nutrients Account Manager Lynn Larsen discusses product needs with All-American Co-op General Manager Glenn
Lutteke. The CHS Winona River & Rail terminal has six storage domes to serve producer needs.
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90,000

tons of dry
product
storage

gained with the
acquisition of CHS
winona River & Rail

retailers, and financial performance suffered at the
wholesale and retail levels.

improvement will serve CHS wholesale crop nutrients
customers in Minnesota, Wisconsin, Iowa and Illinois.

Strong demand for grain and increased capability to
source grain within the United States and in global markets to serve customers year-round helped sustain many
segments within the system despite crop nutrients margin
concerns. Experience with extremely volatile markets in
2008 reinforced the value of risk management on every
level throughout the system. CHS customers — both
grain producers supplying grain and customers looking
for quality grain with specific characteristics — continued to benefit from working with experienced marketers who have deep knowledge and the ability to apply
sophisticated risk management tools to grain marketing
at every phase.

CHS Sunflower experienced a difficult year, driven by a
cool summer in 2008 and an extremely wet fall. These
growing conditions compromised confectionary seed
quality and impacted ability to meet always-high customer standards. Despite the challenges, this business
delivered solid results in fiscal 2009.

Serving the world
The diverse businesses within CHS, from grain marketing to Country Hedging, Inc., to energy, all benefited
from working together to identify the most effective
ways to mitigate risk for the system and its customers.
This cross-business knowledge sharing and stronger
skill set will serve CHS well no matter what conditions
the market offers.
In early calendar 2009, CHS completed acquisition of
increased storage capacity and rail access along the
Mississippi River. The purchase, named CHS Winona
River & Rail, added strength to the company’s crop
nutrients position in the upper Midwest with 90,000 tons
of dry product storage, a dedicated dock and capacity
for 65-car rail loading and unloading. This infrastructure

Country Operations, the CHS retail business, was a
strong partner with customers during tumultuous times,
responding quickly to local conditions while backed
by the strength of the total cooperative system. The
locations provide a variety of products and services to
growers, from crop inputs and agronomic expertise to
livestock nutrition to financial service and risk management. Country Operations achieved its second-best
results ever, despite extreme market volatility, benefiting the producers served by these locally controlled
retail units.
CHS Nutrition enhanced personnel expertise and provided additional consulting offerings during the year
to help livestock producers succeed within the difficult
economic environment. As many producers coped
with increased input costs and lower market values for
livestock and milk, CHS Nutrition focused on providing
value-added products and expertise to arrive at the
best nutrition program for each herd. At the same time,
infrastructure improvements, such as automated product handling systems, helped CHS Nutrition manage
costs and inventory to continue to deliver high-quality
products at cost-effective prices.
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processing
The view of fiscal 2009 from the perspective of CHS
processing businesses featured continued volatility in
commodity prices, paired with increasing consumer
concerns over the global economy. This created an
environment where strategic business planning and
risk management were increasingly critical to success
in 2009 and beyond.
The oilseed processing business enjoyed solid earnings despite the difficult year. With continuing price
swings in the cost of soybeans and other raw materials,
thoughtful and timely purchasing was vital to maintaining profitability and supply. A diverse range of products
created by CHS soybean processing facilities helped
strike a balance between soybean price uncertainty
and record-high prices for soybean meal, soy flour and
soybean oil early in the fiscal year.

Pressure on soybeans
CHS soybean crushing facilities in Mankato and
Fairmont, Minn., processed near-record volumes of
soybeans during the year. The strong throughput helped
maximize efficiency in the state-of-the-art facilities. The
primary customer for soybean meal, a high-protein,
high-energy ingredient, is livestock producers, especially those with pork and poultry operations in the

upper Midwest. In 2009, these segments of the livestock
industry faced serious price reductions for poultry, hogs
and milk, which caused many to decrease production.
Only minimal recovery had occurred by the close of
the fiscal year, so pressure on soybean meal values is
expected to persist into 2010.
Production of soybean oil, a key ingredient in many
products used in food manufacturing and by food
service providers, declined slightly as the U.S. economic
downturn reduced consumer dollars spent on eating
outside the home and made the year extremely difficult for upscale restaurants. Attention to trends toward
healthier eating and adoption of oil processing techniques that enabled production of trans-fat-free foods,
made from specialty-trait soybeans produced by CHS
members, helped open new marketing opportunities
and reinforced customer relationships.
Stringent requirements on how ingredients are produced, including the impact of manufacturing on the
environment, became more common during the year,
led primarily by large-scale customers seeking suppliers
located around the world. The CHS emphasis on caring
for communities and the environment while manu
facturing quality products helped meet these added
requirements and are in line with CHS values and
business objectives.

Top, left to right: Alexey Korolkov, CHS Russia; Vyacheslav Tsybulsky, Agromarket; Alexander Filinov, Agromarket; and
Alex Hanson, CHS Geneva, discuss the new ACG joint venture. The soon-to-be completed terminal expansion at Odessa,
Ukraine, will provide CHS with access to one of the largest, busiest, deepest Black Sea ports through its joint venture with
Olimpex. CHS has partnered with Agromarket, the grain trading group of the Russian company Agrico, to create ACG, a
grain procurement and marketing joint venture. With access to the state-of-the-art port at Novorossiysk, Russia, ACG has
access to high-speed capability to load Panamax vessels.
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7

countries
WITH CHS
GRAIN OFFICES
MEETING CUSTOMER
NEEDS EVERY DAY

Providing protein
The year marked record exports of many soy products, including soybean meal and soy flour, a highprotein ingredient that helps consumers around the
world enjoy increased nutritional value at less cost than
many traditional protein sources, such as meat and
poultry. Demand for soy flour continues to grow each
year. CHS Protein Foods, Hutchinson, Kan., a 2008
acquisition, is a leader in meeting this growing need.
CHS Protein Foods is a global provider of texturized
soy-based foods and pet food ingredients.
Based in suburban Los Angeles, Ventura Foods, LLC,
the joint venture of CHS and Mitsui & Co., Ltd., successfully completed its first full year in a new consolidated,
high-technology facility at Ontario, Calif., gaining significant manufacturing and logistical efficiencies. With
drastic shifts in foodservice demand due to economic
pressures on consumers and increased prices for the
soy oil used to make dressings, sauces, margarines
and more, Ventura Foods focused on developing new

opportunities with customers, including chains such as
Dairy Queen® and Subway,® and a wide range of other
foodservice companies.
By creating unique, healthful sauces and other ingredients for these companies, Ventura Foods provides new
tastes for consumers looking for enjoyable, affordable
dining experiences. A major product line renovation in
its dressing, mayonnaise and sauce category resulted
in a three-tier line of Classic Gourmet® products to meet
the needs of foodservice customers from fine dining
to quick service and everything in between. Innovative
products and consumer marketing helped boost sales of
Marie’s® refrigerated dressings and Dean’s® snack dips.
Horizon Milling, the CHS and Cargill joint venture in
wheat milling, completed the year with its second-best
historical earnings, capitalizing on expanded markets
and positive margins. Resurgence in consumer baking
and meals eaten at home helped enhance demand
for baking flour and the specialty flour Horizon Milling
supplies to pasta manufacturers.
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business solutions
With a wide-ranging perspective on how to help member
cooperatives and producers maintain profitability and
success, the growing stable of CHS Business Solutions
entities played a pivotal role in hundreds of agribusinesses. From risk management through hedging, insurance and financial services to personnel development
and leadership training, CHS teams helped shape the
future of many companies and reduced uncertainty for
thousands of growers linked to the system.
With businesses still reeling from the market volatility
that characterized fiscal 2008, the just-completed fiscal
year brought strong demand for the risk management
expertise offered by Country Hedging, Inc., the CHS
full-service commodity brokerage service, and Cofina
Financial, LLC, the financial services arm of CHS.
Country Hedging helped customers manage risk
amid unpredictable commodity markets and applied
knowledge to help companies navigate growth and
consolidation. A broader range of products was created
during the year, including more over-the-counter trading
opportunities, adding a commodity research department and offering the services of a first-ever carbon
credit trading group. With the end of open outcry
trading and the switch to exclusively electronic trading
at the Minneapolis Grain Exchange in early 2009,
Country Hedging closed its office there.
Extending its ability to provide a steady stream of accurate information to customers, Country Hedging added
text message alerts, daily web-based video commentaries and market updates.
Cofina Financial completed its first full year with CHS
as its sole owner. Customers benefited from the solid
balance sheet and resources of CHS, with access to a
team of seasoned professionals dedicated to serving
each customer’s individual needs. With market and
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pricing pressures continuing to cause concern in 2009,
attention to risk mitigation, including counter-party risk,
was well-received by customers battered by the struggling economy. New relationships were created in the
eastern Corn Belt between CHS and member cooperatives during the year, providing new sources of funding
and risk management in that growing CHS trade region.

Enhanced offerings
After several years of difficult conditions in the insurance
market, Ag States Group, the CHS insurance services
business, continued to look for new ways to gain and
serve customers amid historically soft pricing and an
increasingly competitive marketplace. Following the
2008 formation of Impact Risk Solutions, an insurance
brokerage; the addition of a Texas bond brokerage in
2009; and the purchase of all assets of Safety Resource
Alliance, LLC (SRA), Ag States Group was able to provide a more comprehensive risk management package.
SRA provides skilled safety personnel to help smaller
businesses improve loss control and support regulatory
and safety compliance. Attention to these issues helps
companies manage insurance costs, reduce losses and
maintain a safe environment for employees. In August
2009, Ag States Group was again ranked among the
top 100 privately owned insurance and brokerage firms
working in property and casualty insurance.
Responding to increased profitability pressure within
its industry, Ag States Group and its subsidiary Impact
Risk Solutions began transitioning to updated technology solutions to increase efficiency and allow
faster response and more effective customer service.
Reorganization of the business also will allow greater
attention to customer service and added expertise in
risk management technologies.

700

cooperatives
served
by chs business
solutions consulting

CHS Business Solutions Consulting expanded its offerings and added skilled practitioners to its team. New
training options and numerous planning and recruitment services were integrated into CHS customized
consulting services. With a focus on people, planning
and performance, CHS is providing opportunities for
performance enhancement and career development
for individuals and teams at all levels throughout the
system. CHS Business Solutions Consulting provides a
unique, business-centric approach with personnel who
truly understand cooperative and local retail businesses.

legislation debate. This critical discussion affects
all stakeholders, from producers to refining operations
to customers. Members of the CHS Board of Directors,
company leadership and member-customers continue
to participate in this debate.

With a view across the many CHS businesses, the
Business Solutions Consulting team identified and
assisted in new partnerships and alliances between
CHS grain marketing and crop nutrients and a number
of member cooperatives.

CHS is in a unique position to address many of the environmental issues being raised. Producers are interested
in potential returns from carbon trading, but are also
owners of the CHS and NCRA refineries, which have
invested millions in improvements to reduce environmental impact and increase efficiency. Attention by
Washington office staff, relationships with other small
refiners and more frequent visits by CHS leaders with
public officials began in 2009 and will continue. CHS
also coordinates with a wide range of energy and agricultural organizations on state issues of mutal interest.

Bringing new technology and customized communications capabilities to customers throughout the system,
an updated web site (chsinc.com) was introduced during
the year. The secure portal system allows customers
to access proprietary account information and interact
with CHS businesses online, while other audiences
can follow CHS news and learn more about the system
through the public portion of the web site.

The CHS Foundation, the primary giving entity of CHS,
expanded its support to agricultural and cooperative
education by adding mini grants to university agriculture-based organizations. The grants will support
broader learning experiences and professional development opportunities for college students planning to
pursue careers in agribusiness and complement existing
scholarships and other support to education.

Distinctive voice

Ongoing CHS stewardship programs provide resources
to youth organizations, United Way efforts, disaster relief,
and countless community enhancement and enrichment
programs. The CHS Foundation, corporate CHS contributions and employees of CHS all contributed to these
programs that help create vibrant rural communities.

A vital voice for CHS in Washington, D.C., and other
regulatory and legislative arenas, CHS governmental
affairs staff helped raise awareness of the interests of
cooperatives and rural America in the climate change

Top, left to right: John Bender, general manager, Superior Ag, Huntingburg, Ind., reviews co-op direction with Rick Small,
Ag States Group/Daeske, and Ron Sibert, CHS Business Solutions Consulting. The new Wabash Valley Grain, LLC, is linked
by water from an Ohio River terminal to export facilities and world grain markets. The grain joint venture between Superior
Ag and CHS includes inland elevators serving the needs of wheat, corn and soybean producers.
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highlights
Given the economic environment in which companies worldwide operated
during the past 12 months, financial performance must clearly be viewed
in perspective.
For CHS, while fiscal 2009 results represented a significant
decline in net income and lower revenues, overall performance
was the fourth best in a nearly 80-year history and reflected
record or near-record performance for many of the company’s
businesses. Net income for fiscal 2009 was $381.4 million,
down 53 percent. Revenues declined 20 percent, largely due to
significantly reduced values for many of the commodities CHS
handles that had reached record heights during fiscal 2008.
Earnings for 2009 were led by the Energy segment, including
refined fuels, propane, lubricants and support businesses.
Strong refining margins and a growing retail presence contributed to refined fuels earnings, while geographic growth and
strong demand led propane to record earnings.
Performance varied widely in the Ag Business segment. Both
grain marketing and retail operations posted near-record earnings, resulting from continued global demand for grain products
and successful use of risk management tools, while a dramatic
drop in crop nutrients values brought a significant loss. The crop
nutrients business had record earnings in fiscal 2008, which
included a $91.7 million one-time gain on the sale of interest in
CF Industries, a fertilizer manufacturer.
CHS processing businesses include oilseed crushing and
refining operations, plus ownership in Horizon Milling, LLC, and
Ventura Foods, LLC. Overall earnings for the segment set a new

mark in fiscal 2009, with all businesses contributing solid performance in a challenged market. During fiscal 2009, CHS took
a write-off of $74.3 million on its investment in VeraSun Energy,
the ethanol manufacturer that filed for bankruptcy liquidation in
October 2008. This followed a $71.7 impairment taken in fiscal
2008 and ends CHS ownership in VeraSun.
CHS Business Solutions operations, recorded within the
“Corporate and Other” category, reported lower earnings for
fiscal 2009 due to the soft market for insurance services and
reduced activity in the company’s hedging, risk management
and financing businesses amid waning market volatility.
Based on fiscal 2008 results, 2009 was the fifth consecutive
year CHS made record returns to its owners. A combined $347.2
million in cash patronage, equity redemptions, and preferred
stock and dividends was returned. In fiscal 2010, based on 2009
earnings, the company expects to return about $220 million.
When putting the year into perspective, the overall picture matters most. Once again, CHS ended its fiscal year with a strong
balance sheet and a return on equity of 13 percent — near its
greater than 14 percent goal. This continued solid financial
position will allow CHS to stay on track by prudently investing
in existing businesses and new opportunities to create longterm value for its stakeholders.

Left to right: Kansas State University senior Aaron Sylvester,
a CHS Foundation scholarship winner, looks forward to
using his agribusiness degree on his family farm and
getting involved in cooperative leadership. Michael Boland,
professor of ag economics, provides students with global
policy insights and leads annual international agribusiness
study trips with support from CHS.
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overview
CHS Inc. (CHS or the Company) is a diversified energy, grains

the equity method of accounting, wherein CHS records its pro-

and foods company committed to providing the essential

portionate share of income or loss reported by the entity as

resources that enrich lives around the world. As a cooperative,

equity income from investments without consolidating the rev-

the Company is owned by farmers, ranchers and their member
cooperatives across the United States. The Company also has

enues and expenses of the entity in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations. These investments principally

preferred stockholders that own shares of the Company’s 8%

include the Company’s 50% ownership in each of the following

Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock.

companies: Agriliance LLC, TEMCO, LLC and United Harvest,
LLC, and a 39.35% ownership in Multigrain S.A. included in our

The Company provides a full range of agricultural inputs such as

Ag Business segment; 50% ownership in Ventura Foods, LLC,

refined fuels, propane, farm supplies, animal nutrition and
agronomy products, as well as services, which include hedging,

and 24% ownership in Horizon Milling, LLC and Horizon Milling
G.P., included in our Processing segment.

financing and insurance. CHS owns and operates petroleum
refineries and pipelines and markets and distributes refined fuels
and other energy products under the Cenex» brand through a

The following commentary is an overview of the results of operations and financial position of the Company, as of and for the

network of member cooperatives and independents. The Com-

year ended August 31, 2009, and the two previous years. These

pany purchases grains and oilseeds directly and indirectly from
agricultural producers primarily in the midwestern and western

comments should be read in conjunction with the accompanying financial statements and related notes appearing elsewhere

United States. These grains and oilseeds are sold to domestic

in this report, as well as in the Company’s Annual Report on

and international customers, or further processed into a variety
of grain-based foods products.

Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended August 31, 2009, filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission.

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
CHS and all of its wholly-owned and majority-owned subsidiaries and limited liability companies, including the National Cooperative Refinery Association (NCRA), included in our Energy
segment. The effects of all significant intercompany transactions

Consolidated Results
of Operations
Net income for the year ended August 31, 2009, was $381.4

have been eliminated.

million compared to $803.0 million for 2008, which represents
a decrease of $421.6 million (53%). The Company recognized

The Company operates three segments: Energy, Ag Business
and Processing. Corporate and Other primarily represents the

reduced earnings before income taxes of $430.7 million (49%),

Company’s business solutions operations, which consists of

ness segment, and Corporate and Other, respectively. These
decreases were partially offset by improved earnings of $59.8

commodities hedging, financial and insurance services related
to crop production. Summary data for each of these segments
for fiscal years ended August 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, is shown
in Segment Reporting of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

of which $495.3 million and $5.1 million were in our Ag Busi-

million and $9.9 million within our Energy and Processing
segments, respectively, as compared to 2008. Net income
for the year ended August 31, 2007, was $756.7 million.

Revenues of $25.7 billion for the year ended August 31, 2009,
While the Company’s revenues and operating results are
derived from businesses and operations which are wholly-

compared to $32.2 billion for 2008, which represents a decrease

owned and majority-owned, a portion of business operations

Processing segments decreased $3.8 billion (34%), $2.5 billion
(13%) and $0.2 billion (12%), respectively, primarily as the result

are conducted through companies in which CHS holds ownership interests of 50% or less and does not control the operations.
The Company accounts for these investments primarily using

24

of $6.5 billion (20%). Our revenues in Energy, Ag Business and

of decreased average selling prices. Corporate and Other

revenues increased $13.9 million (44%) related to an acquisition

segments, along with Corporate and Other of $64.8 million, $1.0

within financial services. Revenues for the year ended August 31,
2007, were $17.2 billion.

million and $4.8 million, respectively, and was partially offset by
improved equity investment earnings in our Processing segment
of $25.9 million. Equity income from investments for the year

Cost of goods sold of $24.8 billion for the year ended August

ended August 31, 2007, was $109.7 million.

31, 2009, decreased $6.1 billion (20%) compared to 2008, primarily due to lower grain and energy commodity prices. Our

Minority interests of $59.8 million for the year ended August

cost of goods sold in Energy, Ag Business and Processing
segments decreased $3.8 billion (36%), $2.2 billion (11%) and

31, 2009, decreased $12.4 million (17%) compared to 2008, as a
result of less profitable operations within the Company’s

$0.1 billion (12%), respectively, primarily as the result of

majority-owned subsidiaries. Substantially all minority interest

decreased average purchase prices. Cost of goods sold for
the year ended August 31, 2007, was $16.1 billion.

is related to NCRA, in which the Company holds a 74.5% interest. Minority interests for the year ended August 31, 2007, were
$143.2 million.

Marketing, general and administrative expenses of
$355.3 million for the year ended August 31, 2009 increased

Income tax expense was $62.5 million for the year ended

$25.3 million (8%) compared to 2008, and includes $7.6 million

August 31, 2009, compared with $71.5 million for 2008, resulting

from the financial services acquisition reflected in Corporate and
Other. The remaining net change of $17.7 million (5%) includes

in effective tax rates of 14.1% and 8.2%, respectively. The federal
and state statutory rate applied to nonpatronage business activ-

expansion of international offices, other acquisitions and general

ity was 38.9% for each of the three years ended August 31, 2009.

inflation. Marketing, general and administrative expenses for the
year ended August 31, 2007, were $245.4 million.

The income taxes and effective tax rate vary each year based
upon profitability and nonpatronage business activity during
each of the comparable years. Income tax expense for the year

Loss (gain) on investments was a loss of $56.3 million for
the year ended August 31, 2009 compared to a gain of $29.2

ended August 31, 2007, was $40.7 million, resulting in an effective tax rate of 5.1%.

million during fiscal 2008. During 2009, we recorded a $74.3
million loss on our investment in VeraSun in our Processing
segment, due to their bankruptcy, which is in addition to the loss
during 2008 of $72.5 million. During 2008, we sold our remaining
shares of CF stock and recorded a gain of $91.7 million. We had
various other sales of investments during 2009 and 2008 for net
gains of $18.0 million and $10.0 million, respectively. Gain on
investments for the year ended August 31, 2007, was
$20.6 million.

Interest, net of $70.5 million for the year ended August 31,
2009, decreased $6.0 million (8%) compared to 2008. Interest
expense during fiscal years 2009 and 2008, was $85.7 million
and $100.1 million, respectively. Capitalized interest for fiscal
years 2009 and 2008 was $5.2 million and $9.7 million, respectively. Interest income for fiscal years 2009 and 2008 was $10.0
million and $13.9 million, respectively. Interest, net of $31.1
million for the year ended August 31, 2007, includes interest
expense of $63.5 million and was partially offset by capitalized
interest of $11.7 million and interest income of $20.7 million.

Equity income from investments of $105.8 million for the
year ended August 31, 2009, decreased $44.7 million (30%)
compared to 2008. The net decrease was attributable to reduced
earnings from investments within our Ag Business and Energy

Consolidated Balance Sheets
Total current assets of $4.7 billion on August 31, 2009,
decreased $1.1 billion (19%) compared to 2008. The decreases
included receivables of $480.1 million, inventories of $841.7
million, derivative assets of $198.2 million and other current
assets of $219.7 million, and were partially offset by increased
cash and cash equivalents of $636.1 million.

Investments of $727.9 million on August 31, 2009, decreased
$56.6 million (7%) compared to 2008. During 2009, CHS made
investments of $120.2 million, of which $76.3 million was for a
Brazilian investment and $35.0 million increased our investment
in Ventura Foods, LLC. The remaining net change in investments
during 2009 primarily included $81.6 million of proceeds from
investments redeemed and distributions received from equity
and other investments, a reduction due to the acquisition and
consolidation of Cofina Financial, and $74.3 million related to an
ethanol investment bankruptcy, partially offset by $25.4 million
of noncash income from equity and other investments.

Property, plant and equipment of $2.1 billion on August 31,
2009, increased $151.0 million (8%) compared to 2008. The
increase is primarily related to capital expenditures of $315.5
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million and acquisitions of $23.1 million, partially offset by

contracts payable. Of the total long-term debt outstanding of

depreciation of $180.9 million and $10.8 million of disposals
during 2009.

$1.0 billion, $83.5 million is payable in the next 12 months.

Other liabilities of $428.9 million on August 31, 2009,
Other assets of $297.0 million on August 31, 2009, increased

increased $5.2 million (1%) compared to 2008.

$107.0 million (56%) compared to 2008, primarily due to notes
receivable related to the Cofina Financial consolidation, partially

Minority interests in subsidiaries of $242.9 million on

offset by decreases in deferred major maintenance and prepaid
pension and benefit plan assets.

August 31, 2009, increased $37.1 million (18%) compared to
2008. Substantially all minority interests relate to NCRA. Minority
interest distributions during 2009 and 2008 were $21.1 million

Total current liabilities of $3.1 billion on August 31, 2009,

and $63.1 million, respectively.

decreased $1.0 billion (24%) compared to 2008. The decreases
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included current portion of long-term debt of $35.1 million,

Equities reaching nearly $3.1 billion on August 31, 2009,

customer advance payments of $324.1 million, checks and
drafts outstanding of $118.0 million, accounts payable of

increased $134.6 million (5%) compared to 2008. Each year,
based upon board approval, the Company distributes a portion

$549.1 million, accrued expenses of $66.2 million and dividends

of annual savings from patronage sources to consenting

and equities payable of $122.0 million. The increases in current
liabilities included notes payable of $140.7 million, customer

patrons. Patronage earnings from 2008 were distributed during
2009, of which the cash portion was 35% or $227.6 million.

credit balances of $50.0 million and derivative liabilities

During 2008, the Company distributed cash patronage of $195.0

of $32.5 million.

million. For the years ended August 31, 2009 and 2008, the
Company also redeemed equities in the amounts of $99.6 mil-

Long-term debt of $1.0 billion on August 31, 2009, decreased

lion and $128.2 million, respectively, of which $49.9 million and

$87.8 million (8%) compared to 2008. On August 31, 2009, the
Company’s total long-term debt included $150.0 million of bank

$46.4 million, respectively, were retired using preferred stock.
Dividends and equities payable of $203.1 million are classified

financing, $899.7 million of private placement proceeds and

as current liabilities on the August 31, 2009 Consolidated

$22.2 million of industrial revenue bonds, and other notes and

Balance Sheet.

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the board of directors and members and patrons of CHS Inc.:
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of operations, of equities and
comprehensive income and of cash flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of CHS Inc. and its subsidiaries at
August 31, 2009 and 2008, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended
August 31, 2009, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

November 10, 2009
Minneapolis, Minnesota
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Consolidated Balance Sheets
August 31
( do l l a rs in th ous a nd s )

2009

2008

$ 772,599
1,827,749

$ 136,540
2,307,794

1,526,280

2,368,024

171,340
447,655

369,503
667,338

4,745,623

5,849,199

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Inventories
Derivative assets
Other current assets
Total current assets
Investments
Property, plant and equipment
Other assets
Total assets

727,925

784,516

2,099,325
296,972

1,948,305
189,958

$7,869,845

$8,771,978

$ 246,872

$ 106,154

83,492

118,636

274,343
320,688

224,349
644,822

LIABILITIES AND EQUITIES
Current liabilities:
Notes payable
Current portion of long-term debt
Customer credit balances
Customer advance payments
Checks and drafts outstanding

86,845

204,896

Accounts payable
Derivative liabilities

1,289,139
306,116

1,838,214
273,591

Accrued expenses

308,720

374,898

203,056
3,119,271

325,039
4,110,599

Long-term debt

988,461

1,076,219

Other liabilities
Minority interests in subsidiaries

428,949
242,862

423,742
205,732

3,090,302
$7,869,845

2,955,686
$8,771,978

Dividends and equities payable
Total current liabilities

Commitments and contingencies
Equities
Total liabilities and equities
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
CHS Inc. and Subsidiaries
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Consolidated Statements of Operations
For the years ended August 31
( do l l a rs in th ous a nd s )

Revenues

2009

2008

2007

$25,729,916

$32,167,461

$17,215,992

Cost of goods sold

24,849,901

30,993,899

16,129,233

Gross profit
Marketing, general and administrative

880,015
355,299

1,173,562
329,965

1,086,759
245,357

Operating earnings

524,716

843,597

841,402

56,305
70,487

(29,193)
76,460

(20,616)
31,098

(105,754)

(150,413)

(109,685)

59,780

72,160

143,214

443,898
62,491

874,583
71,538

797,391
40,668

Loss (gain) on investments
Interest, net
Equity income from investments
Minority interests
Income before income taxes
Income taxes
Net income

$

381,407

$

803,045

$

756,723

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
CHS Inc. and Subsidiaries
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Consolidated Statements of Equities and Comprehensive Income
For the years ended August 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007
( do l l a rs in th ous a nd s )

Balances, September 1, 2006
Dividends and equity retirement determination
Patronage distribution
Equities retired
Capital equity certificates exchanged for preferred stock
Equities issued
Preferred stock dividends
Other, net
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income
Adjustment to initially apply FASB Statement No. 158
Dividends and equities payable
Balances, August 31, 2007
Dividends and equity retirement determination
Patronage distribution
Equities retired
Capital equity certificates exchanged for preferred stock
Equities issued
Preferred stock dividends
Other, net
Comprehensive income:
Net income
Other comprehensive loss
Total comprehensive income
Dividends and equities payable
Balances, August 31, 2008
Dividends and equity retirement determination
Patronage distribution
Equities retired
Capital equity certificates exchanged for preferred stock
Equities issued
Preferred stock dividends
Adoption of retirement plan measurement date change
Other, net
Comprehensive income:
Net (loss) income
Other comprehensive loss
Total comprehensive income
Dividends and equities payable
Balances, August 31, 2009
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
CHS Inc. and Subsidiaries
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Capital Equity
Certificates

$1,180,083
116,919
246,802
(70,402)
(35,899)
10,132
(3,203)

(179,381)
1,265,051
179,381
362,206
(81,295)
(46,364)
4,680
(2,057)

(93,823)
1,587,779
93,823
421,289
(49,291)
(49,944)
19,594

(324)

Nonpatronage
Equity Certificates

$27,173

(382)

(145)

26,646

(500)

(804)

25,342

(361)

(186)

(60,000)

(50,122)
$1,912,804

$24,795

Preferred Stock

$150,512

Patronage Refunds

$ 243,100
130,900
(374,000)

35,899

Unallocated
Capital Reserve

$431,446
1,955
(5,860)

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Allocated
Capital Reserve

$ 13,102

$8,050

(145)
(13,104)
168
550,000

(9)

206,723
62,353
(62,419)

186,411

(192,500)
357,500
192,500
(550,000)

46,364

(2,413)
618,770
2,413
(7,210)

13,036

8,041

(135)
(16,288)
429
652,000

(17)

151,045
(81,078)

232,775

(228,200)
423,800
228,200
(652,000)

49,944

(3,016)
746,008
3,016
3,101

(68,042)

8,024

(130)
(20,024)
(2,603)
414

(25)
426,500

14,907
(88,228)

$282,694

(149,275)
$ 277,225

(3,659)
$741,030

$(156,270)

$8,024

Total Equities

$2,053,466
249,774
(133,058)
(70,784)
(145)
10,132
(13,104)
(3,189)
756,723
62,353
819,076
(62,419)
(374,294)
2,475,455
374,294
(195,004)
(81,795)
(135)
4,680
(16,288)
(2,449)
803,045
(81,078)
721,967
(325,039)
2,955,686
325,039
(227,610)
(49,652)
(130)
19,594
(20,024)
(2,603)
(121)
381,407
(88,228)
293,179
(203,056)
$3,090,302
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended August 31
(dol l ar s in th ou s an ds )

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Amortization of deferred major repair costs
Income from equity investments
Distributions from equity investments
Minority interests
Noncash patronage dividends received
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
Loss (gain) on investments
Deferred taxes
Other, net
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Receivables
Inventories
Derivative assets
Other current assets and other assets
Customer credit balances
Customer advance payments
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Derivative liabilities
Other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposition of property, plant and equipment
Expenditures for major repairs
Investments
Investments redeemed
Proceeds from sale of investments
Joint venture distribution transaction, net
Changes in notes receivable
Acquisition of intangibles
Business acquisitions
Other investing activities, net
Net cash used in investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Changes in notes payable
Long-term debt borrowings
Principal payments on long-term debt
Payments for bank fees on debt
Changes in checks and drafts outstanding
Distributions to minority owners
Costs incurred — capital equity certificates redeemed
Preferred stock dividends paid
Retirements of equities
Cash patronage dividends paid
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
CHS Inc. and Subsidiaries
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2009

2008

2007

$ 381,407

$ 803,045

$ 756,723

196,350
24,999
(105,754)
80,403
59,780
(9,717)
(3,176)
56,305
43,976
2,408

181,263
29,146
(150,413)
110,013
72,160
(4,083)
(5,668)
(29,193)
26,011
770

140,596
23,250
(109,685)
66,693
143,214
(3,302)
(6,916)
(20,616)
50,868
4,261

692,540
895,882
198,163
186,217
47,946
(328,854)
(664,160)
32,525
(51,708)
1,735,532

(832,146)
(517,515)
(122,421)
(98,625)
113,501
275,386
827,997
96,382
30,152
805,762

(278,179)
(528,288)
(172,809)
(81,906)
44,030
79,138
211,469
79,399
9,346
407,286

(315,505)
10,769
(1,771)
(120,181)
39,787
41,822
850
123,307
(2,431)
(76,364)
9,773
(289,944)

(318,559)
9,336
(21,662)
(370,248)
43,046
122,075
(4,737)
(67,119)
(3,399)
(47,001)
(5,444)
(663,712)

(373,300)
13,548
(34,664)
(95,834)
4,935
10,918
(29,320)
(9,083)
(15,104)
(2,051)
(529,955)

(251,225)

(565,022)
600,000
(99,479)
(3,486)
61,110
(63,123)
(135)
(16,288)
(81,795)
(195,004)
(363,222)
(221,172)
357,712
$ 136,540

633,203
4,050
(60,851)
(104)
85,412
(76,763)
(145)
(13,104)
(70,784)
(133,058)
367,856
245,187
112,525
$ 357,712

(118,864)
(1,584)
(119,301)
(21,139)
(130)
(20,024)
(49,652)
(227,610)
(809,529)
636,059
136,540
$ 772,599

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

notes
1

Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies

Inventories
Grain, processed grain, oilseed and processed oilseed are
stated at net realizable values which approximates market values. All other inventories are stated at the lower of cost or
market. Costs for inventories produced or modified by the Com-

Organization

pany through a manufacturing process include fixed and vari-

CHS Inc. (CHS or the Company) is an agricultural supply, energy

able production and raw material costs, and in-bound freight
costs for raw materials. Costs for inventories purchased for

and grain-based foods cooperative company organized for the
mutual benefit of its members. Members of the cooperative are
located across the United States. The Company provides a wide
variety of products and services, from initial agricultural inputs
such as fuels, farm supplies and agronomy products, to agricultural outputs that include grains and oilseeds, grain and
oilseed processing and food products. Revenues are both
domestic and international.

Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
CHS and all of its wholly-owned and majority-owned subsidiaries and limited liability companies, including National Cooperative Refinery Association (NCRA), included in the Energy
segment. The effects of all significant intercompany transactions
have been eliminated.

resale include the cost of products and freight incurred to place
the products at the Company’s points of sales. The costs of
certain energy inventories (wholesale refined products, crude oil
and asphalt) are determined on the last-in, first-out (LIFO)
method; all other inventories of non-grain products purchased
for resale are valued on the first-in, first-out (FIFO) and average
cost methods.

Derivative Financial Instruments and
Hedging Activities
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 161,
“Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, an Amendment of SFAS No. 133”, was required to be
adopted for interim and annual periods beginning after November 15, 2008. Therefore, the Company adopted SFAS No. 161
during the second quarter of fiscal 2009. As SFAS No. 161 is only

The Company had various acquisitions during the three years
ended August 31, 2009, which have been accounted for using
the purchase method of accounting. Operating results of the

disclosure related, it did not have an impact on the Company’s
financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

acquisitions are included in the consolidated financial state-

The Company’s derivative instruments primarily consist of com-

ments since the respective acquisition dates. The respective
purchase prices were allocated to the assets, liabilities and

modity and freight futures and forward contracts and, to a minor
degree, may include foreign currency and interest rate swap

identifiable intangible assets acquired based upon the esti-

contracts. These contracts are economic hedges of price risk,

mated fair values. The excess purchase prices over the esti-

but are not designated or accounted for as hedging instruments
for accounting purposes. These contracts are recorded on the

mated fair values of the net assets acquired have been reported
as goodwill.

Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair values as discussed in Note 12, Fair Value Measurements.

Cash Equivalents
Cash equivalents include short-term, highly liquid investments

The Company has netting arrangements for its exchange traded

with original maturities of three months or less at the date

futures and options contracts and certain over-the-counter
(OTC) contracts which are recorded on a net basis in the

of acquisition.

Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheets. Although Financial
Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Staff Position
(FSP) No. FASB Interpretation (FIN) 39-1 permits a party to a
master netting arrangement to offset fair value amounts

33

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Commodity and Freight Contracts:

1

Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies, continued

recognized for derivative instruments against the right to reclaim
cash collateral or the obligation to return cash collateral under
the same master netting arrangement, the Company has not
elected to net its margin deposits.
As of August 31, 2009, the Company had the following outstanding contracts:

When the Company enters into a commodity or freight purchase
or sales commitment, it incurs risks related to price change and
performance (including delivery, quality, quantity and shipment
period). The Company is exposed to risk of loss in the market
value of positions held, consisting of inventory and purchase
contracts at a fixed or partially fixed price in the event market
prices decrease. The Company is also exposed to risk of loss on
its fixed price or partially fixed price sales contracts in the event
market prices increase.
The Company’s commodity contracts primarily relate to grain
and oilseed, energy and fertilizer commodities. The Company’s
freight contracts primarily relate to rail, barge and ocean freight

( un it s i n t ho usan ds)

P ur ch as e
C on t r ac t s

Sal es
C o n t r act s

591,639

715,914

ing against adverse short-term price movements, while limiting

8,879

12,456

933

1,016

the benefits of short-term price movements. To reduce the price
change risks associated with holding fixed price commitments,

3,493

3,316

Grain and oilseed — bushels
Energy products — barrels
Crop nutrients — tons
Ocean and barge freight — metric tons

transactions. The Company’s use of commodity and freight
contracts reduces the effects of price volatility, thereby protect-

the Company generally takes opposite and offsetting positions

As of August 31, 2009, the gross fair values of the Company’s

by entering into commodity futures contracts or options, to the
extent practical, in order to arrive at a net commodity position

derivative assets and liabilities were as follows:

within the formal position limits it has established and deemed
prudent for each commodity. These contracts are purchased

( dolla rs in t h ousa nd s)

and sold through regulated commodity futures exchanges for
grain, and regulated mercantile exchanges for refined products

Derivative Assets:
Commodity and freight derivatives

$296,416

and crude oil. The Company also uses OTC instruments to

$426,281

hedge its exposure on flat price fluctuations. The price risk
the Company encounters for crude oil and most of the grain

4,911

and oilseed volumes it handles can be hedged. Price risk asso-

$431,192

ciated with fertilizer and certain grains cannot be hedged
because there are no futures for these commodities and, as a

Derivative Liabilities:
Commodity and freight derivatives
Interest rate derivatives

After SFAS No. 161 was adopted in the second quarter of fiscal
2009, the gain (loss) for derivatives recognized in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations by quarter was
as follows:
(dollars in
thousands)

Location of
Gain (Loss)

Commodity and
freight
derivatives

Cost of goods
sold

Foreign
exchange
derivatives

Cost of goods
sold

Interest rate
derivatives

Interest, net

February 28

May 31

August 31

$12,543

$(38,047)

$(58,336)

result, risk is managed through the use of forward sales contracts and other pricing arrangements and, to some extent,
cross-commodity futures hedging. Fertilizer and propane contracts are accounted for as normal purchase and normal sales
transactions. The Company expects all normal purchase and
normal sales transactions to result in physical settlement.
When a futures contract is entered into, an initial margin deposit
must be sent to the applicable exchange or broker. These margin deposits are included in other current assets in the Compa-

(1,572)

(2,754)

(884)

ny’s Consolidated Balance Sheets. The amount of the deposit is
set by the exchange and varies by commodity. If the market price

(777)

(1,145)

(5,800)

of a short futures contract increases, then an additional main-

$10,194

$(41,946)

$(65,020)

tenance margin deposit would be required. Similarly, if the price
of a long futures contract decreases, a maintenance margin
deposit would be required and sent to the applicable exchange.
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Subsequent price changes could require additional mainte-

Interest Rate Contracts:

nance margins or could result in the return of maintenance margins.

The Company uses fixed and floating rate debt to lessen the

The Company’s policy is to primarily maintain hedged positions
in grain and oilseed. The Company’s profitability from opera-

sented by notes payable with maturities of 30 days or less, so

tions is primarily derived from margins on products sold and
grain merchandised, not from hedging transactions. At any one
time, inventory and purchase contracts for delivery to the Company may be substantial. The Company has risk management
policies and procedures that include net position limits. These
limits are defined for each commodity and include both trader
and management limits. This policy and computerized procedures in the Company’s grain marketing operations require a
review by operations management when any trader is outside of
position limits and also a review by the Company’s senior
management if operating areas are outside of position limits.
A similar process is used in the Company’s energy and wholesale crop nutrients operations. The position limits are reviewed,
at least annually, with the Company’s management and the
Board of Directors. The Company monitors current market con-

effects of interest rate fluctuations on interest expense. Shortterm debt used to finance inventories and receivables is reprethat the Company’s blended interest rate for all such notes
approximates current market rates. During fiscal 2009, the Company entered into an interest rate swap with a notional amount of
$150.0 million, expiring in 2010, to lock in the interest rate for
$150.0 million of its $1.3 billion five-year revolving line of credit.
Cofina Financial, LLC (Cofina Financial) has interest rate swaps
that lock the variable interest rates of the underlying loans with a
combined notional amount of $21.5 million expiring at various
times through fiscal 2018, with approximately half of the notional
amount expiring during or prior to fiscal 2013. As of August 31,
2009, all of the Company’s interest rate swaps, including those
of Cofina Financial, do not qualify for hedge accounting due to
ineffectiveness caused by repayment of borrowings or differences in underlying terms. As a result of the swaps not qualifying
for hedge accounting, changes in fair value are recorded in

ditions and may expand or reduce its net position limits or

earnings within interest, net on the Consolidated Statements
of Operations.

procedures in response to changes in those conditions. In
addition, all purchase and sales contracts are subject to credit

Foreign Exchange Contracts:

approvals and appropriate terms and conditions.

The Company conducts essentially all of its business in U.S. dol-

Hedging arrangements do not protect against nonperformance
by counterparties to contracts. The Company primarily uses
exchange traded instruments which minimizes its counterparty
exposure. The Company evaluates exposure by reviewing contracts and adjusting the values to reflect potential nonperformance. Risk of nonperformance by counterparties includes the
inability to perform because of counterparty’s financial condition
and also the risk that the counterparty will refuse to perform on a
contract during periods of price fluctuations where contract
prices are significantly different than current market prices.
The Company manages its risks by entering into fixed price

lars, except for grain marketing operations primarily in Brazil and
Switzerland, and purchases of products from Canada. The
Company had minimal risk regarding foreign currency fluctuations during fiscal 2009 and in prior years, as substantially all
international sales were denominated in U.S. dollars. From time
to time, the Company enters into foreign currency futures contracts to mitigate currency fluctuations. Foreign currency fluctuations do, however, impact the ability of foreign buyers to
purchase U.S. agricultural products and the competitiveness
of U.S. agricultural products compared to the same products
offered by alternative sources of world supply. As of August 31,
2009,

the

Company

had

no

foreign

currency

con-

purchase and sales contracts with preapproved producers and

tracts outstanding.

by establishing appropriate limits for individual suppliers. Fixed
price contracts are entered into with customers of acceptable

Investments

creditworthiness, as internally evaluated. Historically, the Com-

Investments in other cooperatives are stated at cost, plus
patronage dividends received in the form of capital stock and

pany has not experienced significant events of nonperformance
on open contracts. Accordingly, the Company only adjusts the
estimated fair values of specifically identified contracts for nonperformance. Although the Company has established policies
and procedures, it makes no assurances that historical nonperformance experience will carry forward to future periods.

other equities. Patronage dividends are recorded as a reduction
to cost of goods sold at the time qualified written notices of
allocation are received. Joint ventures and other investments, in
which the Company has significant ownership and influence, but
not control, are accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Investments
in other debt and equity securities are considered available for
sale financial instruments and are stated at fair value, with
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1

Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies, continued

reasonably be estimated for the retirement of any component
part of a refinery or related asset, the Company will estimate the
cost of performing the retirement activities and record a liability
for the fair value of that cost using established present
value techniques.

unrealized amounts included as a component of accumulated

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

other comprehensive income (loss). Investments in debt and
equity instruments are carried at amounts that approximate fair

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price of an
acquired entity over the amounts assigned to assets acquired

values. Investments in cooperatives and joint ventures have no

and liabilities assumed. Goodwill and other intangible assets are

quoted market prices.

reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently if impairment conditions arise, and those that are impaired are written

Property, Plant and Equipment

down to fair value. Other intangible assets consist primarily of

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amorti-

customer lists, trademarks and agreements not to compete.
Intangible assets subject to amortization are expensed over

zation are provided on the straight-line method by charges to

their respective useful lives (ranging from 2 to 15 years). The

operations at rates based upon the expected useful lives of
individual or groups of assets (primarily 15 to 40 years for land

Company has no material intangible assets with indefinite useful lives.

improvements and buildings and 3 to 20 years for machinery,
equipment, office and other). The cost and related accumulated
depreciation and amortization of assets sold or otherwise dis-

Revenue Recognition

posed of are removed from the related accounts and resulting

from production agricultural inputs such as fuels, farm supplies

gains or losses are reflected in operations. Expenditures for
maintenance and repairs and minor renewals are expensed,

and crop nutrients, to agricultural outputs that include grain and
oilseed, processed grains and oilseeds and food products.

while costs of major renewals and betterments are capitalized.

Grain and oilseed sales are recorded after the commodity has

The Company provides a wide variety of products and services,

been delivered to its destination and final weights, grades and
The Company reviews property, plant and equipment and other
long-lived assets in order to assess recoverability based on

settlement prices have been agreed upon. All other sales are
recognized upon transfer of title, which could occur upon either

projected income and related cash flows on an undiscounted

shipment or receipt by the customer, depending upon the terms

basis when triggering events occur. Should the sum of the
expected future net cash flows be less than the carrying value,

of the transaction. Amounts billed to a customer as part of a
sales transaction related to shipping and handling are included

an impairment loss would be recognized. An impairment loss

in revenues. Service revenues are recorded only after such

would be measured by the amount by which the carrying value
of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset.

services have been rendered.

Environmental Expenditures
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The Company has asset retirement obligations with respect to
certain of its refineries and related assets due to various legal

Liabilities, including legal costs, related to remediation of contaminated properties are recognized when the related costs are

obligations to clean and/or dispose of various component parts

considered probable and can be reasonably estimated. Esti-

at the time they are retired. However, these assets can be used
for extended and indeterminate periods of time, as long as they

mates of environmental costs are based on current available
facts, existing technology, undiscounted site-specific costs and

are properly maintained and/or upgraded. It is the Company’s

currently enacted laws and regulations. Recoveries, if any, are

practice and current intent to maintain refinery and related
assets and to continue making improvements to those assets

recorded in the period in which recovery is received. Liabilities
are monitored and adjusted as new facts or changes in law or

based on technological advances. As a result, the Company

technology occur. Environmental expenditures are capitalized

believes that its refineries and related assets have indeterminate
lives for purposes of estimating asset retirement obligations

when such costs provide future economic benefits.

because dates or ranges of dates upon which the Company

Income Taxes

would retire a refinery and related assets cannot reasonably be
estimated at this time. When a date or range of dates can

The Company is a nonexempt agricultural cooperative and files
a consolidated federal income tax return with its 80% or more

owned subsidiaries. The Company is subject to tax on income

statements to evaluate the nature and financial effects of the

from nonpatronage sources and undistributed patronagesourced income. Income tax expense is primarily the current

business combination. Acquisition costs associated with the
business combination will generally be expensed as incurred.

tax payable for the period and the change during the period in

SFAS No. 141(R) is effective for business combinations occur-

certain deferred tax assets and liabilities. Deferred income taxes
reflect the impact of temporary differences between the amounts

ring in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. Early
adoption of SFAS No. 141(R) is not permitted. The impact of

of assets and liabilities recognized for financial reporting pur-

adopting SFAS No. 141(R) on CHS consolidated financial state-

poses and such amounts recognized for federal and state
income tax purposes, based on enacted tax laws and statutory

ments will depend on the nature and terms of business combinations completed beginning in the Company’s first quarter of

tax rates applicable to the periods in which the differences are

fiscal 2010.

expected to affect taxable income. Valuation allowances are
established, when necessary, to reduce deferred tax assets to

In April 2009, the FASB issued FSP SFAS No. 141(R)-1,

the amount expected to be realized. Valuation allowances have

“Accounting for Assets Acquired and Liabilities Assumed in a

been established primarily for capital loss carryforwards.

Business Combination that Arise from Contingencies.” This FSP
amends and clarifies SFAS No. 141(R) on initial recognition and

Comprehensive Income

measurement, subsequent measurement and accounting, and

Comprehensive income primarily includes net income, unrealized net gains or losses on available for sale investments and

disclosure of assets and liabilities arising from contingencies in a
business combination. It is effective for business combinations

changes in the funded status of pension and other postretire-

occurring in fiscal years beginning on or after December 15,

ment plans. Total comprehensive income is reflected in the
Consolidated Statements of Equities and Comprehen-

2008. The impact of adopting SFAS No. 141(R)-1 on CHS consolidated financial statements will depend on the nature and

sive Income.

terms of business combinations completed beginning in the
Company’s first quarter of fiscal 2010.

Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 160, “Noncon-

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States

trolling Interests in Consolidated Financial Statements, an

of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and

Amendment of Accounting Research Bulletin (ARB) No. 51.”
This statement amends ARB No. 51 to establish accounting and

liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the

reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest (minority

date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual

interest) in a subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. Upon its adoption, noncontrolling interests will be clas-

results could differ from those estimates.

sified as equity in our Consolidated Balance Sheets. Income and

Subsequent Events

comprehensive income attributed to the noncontrolling interest
will be included in our Consolidated Statements of Operations

The Company has evaluated events that have occurred subse-

and our Consolidated Statements of Equities and Comprehen-

quent to August 31, 2009, through November 10, 2009, the date
these financial statements were issued, and has determined

sive Income. SFAS No. 160 is effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2008. The provisions of this standard must

there

be applied retrospectively upon adoption. The adoption of

were

no

material

events

requiring

recognition

or disclosure.

SFAS No. 160 will affect the presentation of these items in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements beginning in the

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Company’s first quarter of fiscal 2010.

In December 2007, FASB issued SFAS No. 141(R), “Business
Combinations.” SFAS No. 141(R) provides companies with prin-

In December 2008, the FASB issued FSP SFAS No. 132(R)-1,

ciples and requirements on how an acquirer recognizes and

“Employers’ Disclosures about Postretirement Benefit Plan

measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets
acquired, liabilities assumed, and any noncontrolling interest

Assets,” which expands the disclosure requirements about fair
value measurements of plan assets for pension plans, postre-

in the acquiree, as well as the recognition and measurement of

tirement medical plans and other funded postretirement plans.

goodwill acquired in a business combination. SFAS No. 141(R)
also requires certain disclosures to enable users of the financial

This FSP is effective for fiscal years ending after December 15,
2009, with early adoption permitted. The Company has chosen
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Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies, continued

not to early adopt as FSP SFAS No. 132(R)-1 is only disclosure
related, and will not have an impact on the Company’s financial
position or results of operations.
In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 166, “Accounting for
Transfers of Financial Assets — an amendment of SFAS No. 140”.
This statement requires additional disclosures concerning a transferor’s continuing involvement with transferred financial assets.
SFAS No. 166 eliminates the concept of a “qualifying specialpurpose entity” and changes the requirements for derecognizing
financial assets. SFAS No. 166 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2009. The Company is currently evaluating the impact that the adoption of SFAS No. 166 will have on its

accounting literature not included in the Codification is considered nonauthoritative. The Codification is effective for interim
and annual periods ending after September 15, 2009. The
Codification is for disclosure only and will not impact the Company’s financial condition or results of operations. CHS is currently evaluating the impact to the financial reporting process of
providing Codification references in public filings.

2

Receivables

Receivables as of August 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:
( d ollars in t housand s)

Trade accounts receivable
Cofina Financial notes
receivable
Other

consolidated financial statements in fiscal 2011.
Less allowances and reserves

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 167, “Amendments to

2 009

2 00 8

$1,482,921

$2,181,132

254,419
189,434

200,313

1,926,774

2,381,445

99,025

73,651

$1,827,749

$2,307,794

FASB Interpretation No. 46(R)”, which requires an enterprise to
conduct a qualitative analysis for the purpose of determining
whether, based on its variable interests, it also has a controlling

Trade accounts receivable are initially recorded at a selling price,

interest in a variable interest entity. SFAS No. 167 clarifies that

which approximates fair value, upon the sale of goods or ser-

the determination of whether a company is required to consolidate an entity is based on, among other things, an entity’s

vices to customers. Cofina Financial notes receivable are
reported at their outstanding principle balances as the Company

purpose and design and a company’s ability to direct the activ-

has the ability and intent to hold these notes to maturity.

ities of the entity that most significantly impact the entity’s
economic performance. SFAS No. 167 requires an ongoing
reassessment of whether a company is the primary beneficiary
of a variable interest entity. SFAS No. 167 also requires additional disclosures about a company’s involvement in variable
interest entities and any significant changes in risk exposure due
to that involvement. SFAS No. 167 is effective for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2009. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact that the adoption of SFAS No. 167 will

Inventories

Inventories as of August 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:
( d ollars in t housand s)

2 00 8

$ 638,622

$ 918,514

496,114

596,487

In June 2009, the FASB issued SFAS No. 168, “FASB Accounting

Crop nutrients

114,832

399,986

Standards Codification” (Codification) as the single source of
authoritative nongovernmental U.S. Generally Accepted

Feed and farm supplies

198,440

371,670

69,344

74,537

Accounting Principles (GAAP) that was launched on July 1,

Other

2009. The Codification does not change current U.S. GAAP,
but is intended to simplify user access to all authoritative
U.S. GAAP by providing all the authoritative literature related
to a particular topic in one place. All existing accounting standard documents have been superseded and all other

Grain and oilseed

2 009

Energy

have on the consolidated financial statements in fiscal 2011.
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3

Processed grain and oilseed

8,928

6,830

$1,526,280

$2,368,024

As of August 31, 2009, the Company valued approximately 17%
of inventories, primarily crude oil and refined fuels within the
Energy segment, using the lower of cost, determined on the

LIFO method, or market (10% as of August 31, 2008). If the FIFO

Ventura Foods balance sheets as of August 31, 2009 and

method of accounting had been used, inventories would have
been higher than the reported amount by $311.4 million and

2008, and statements of operations for the 12 months ended
August 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007:

$691.7 million at August 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively. During
2009 and 2008, energy inventory quantities were reduced,
which resulted in liquidation of LIFO inventory quantities carried

( d ollars in t housand s)

Current assets

20 09

2 00 8

$441,406

$401,663

at lower costs prevailing in prior years as compared with the cost

Non-current assets

464,356

485,382

of fiscal 2009 and 2008 purchases. The effect of the liquidation
increased cost of goods sold by $5.3 million during 2009 and

Current liabilities

141,844

298,371

Non-current liabilities

303,665

308,312

decreased cost of goods sold by $32.5 million during 2008.

4

( d o llars in
t housan ds)

Investments

Net sales

Investments as of August 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:
( dolla rs in t h ousa nd s)

20 09

20 08

Cooperatives:
Land O’Lakes, Inc.

$ 45,747 $ 40,542

20 09

2 008

2 00 7

$2,055,768

$2,120,332

$1,637,998

Gross profit

269,269

162,756

208,938

Net income

125,190

29,303

64,156

The Company purchased $70.0 million of common stock in US
BioEnergy Corporation (US BioEnergy), an ethanol production
company, during the year ended August 31, 2006, which was

CoBank, ACB

19,891

13,851

reflected in the Processing segment. During the year ended

Ag Processing Inc.

18,594

18,799

August 31, 2007, the Company made additional investments of
$45.4 million. In December 2006, US BioEnergy completed an

Ventura Foods, LLC

245,525

156,394

Initial Public Offering (IPO), and the effect of the issuance of

Multigrain AG

141,179

65,573

United Country Brands, LLC
(Agriliance LLC)

80,436

147,449

additional shares of its stock was to dilute the Company’s
ownership interest from approximately 25% to 21%. In addition,

Horizon Milling, LLC

56,999

66,529

TEMCO, LLC

27,181

26,969

Horizon Milling G.P.

19,137

20,242

Joint ventures:

Cofina Financial, LLC

41,378

VeraSun Energy Corporation
Other

74,338
73,236

112,452

$727,925 $784,516

on August 29, 2007, US BioEnergy completed an acquisition
with total aggregate net consideration comprised of the issuance of US BioEnergy common stock and cash. Due to US
BioEnergy’s increase in equity, primarily from these two transactions, the Company recognized a non-cash net gain of
$15.3 million on its investment during the year ended August 31,
2007, to reflect its proportionate share of the increase in the
underlying equity of US BioEnergy. During the first quarter of

The Company has a 50% interest in Ventura Foods, LLC, (Ven-

fiscal 2008, the Company purchased additional shares of US
BioEnergy common stock for $6.5 million. Through March 31,

tura Foods), a joint venture which produces and distributes
primarily vegetable oil-based products, and is included in the

2008, the Company was recognizing its share of the earnings of

Company’s Processing segment. During the years ended

US BioEnergy using the equity method of accounting. Effective
April 1, 2008, US BioEnergy and VeraSun Energy Corporation

August 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company made capital contributions to Ventura Foods of $35.0 million and $20.0 million,

(VeraSun) completed a merger, and the Company’s ownership

respectively. The Company accounts for Ventura Foods as an

interest in the combined entity was reduced to approximately
8%, compared to an approximate 20% interest in US BioEnergy

equity method investment, and as of August 31, 2009, its carrying value of Ventura Foods exceeded its share of their equity

prior to the merger. As part of the merger transaction, the

by $14.9 million, of which $2.0 million is being amortized with a

Company’s shares held in US BioEnergy were converted to
shares held in the surviving company, VeraSun, at 0.810 per

remaining life of approximately three years. The remaining basis
difference represents equity method goodwill. The following

share. As a result of the Company’s change in ownership inter-

provides summarized unaudited financial information for

est, it no longer had significant influence, and therefore, no
longer accounted for VeraSun using the equity method. Due
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company. In September 2007, Agriliance distributed the assets

Investments, continued

to the continued decline of the ethanol industry and other considerations, the Company determined that an impairment of its
VeraSun investment was necessary during fiscal 2008, and as a
result, based on VeraSun’s market value of $5.76 per share on
August 29, 2008, an impairment charge of $71.7 million was
recorded in loss (gain) on investments. Subsequent to
August 31, 2008, the market value of VeraSun’s stock price
continued to decline, and on October 31, 2008, VeraSun filed
for relief under Chapter 11 of the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. Consequently, the Company’s management determined an additional impairment was necessary based on VeraSun’s market
value of $0.28 per share on November 3, 2008, and recorded an
impairment charge of $70.7 million ($64.4 million net of taxes)

of the crop nutrients business to the Company, and the assets of
the crop protection business to Land O’Lakes. Due to the
Company’s 50% ownership interest in Agriliance and the 50%
ownership interest of Land O’Lakes, each company was entitled
to receive 50% of the distributions from Agriliance. Given the
different preliminary values assigned to the assets of the crop
nutrients and the crop protection businesses of Agriliance, at the
closing of the distribution transactions Land O’Lakes owed the
Company $133.5 million. Land O’Lakes paid the Company
$32.6 million in cash, and in order to maintain equal capital
accounts in Agriliance, they also paid down certain portions of
Agriliance’s debt on the Company’s behalf in the amount of
$100.9 million. Values of the distributed assets were finalized
after the closing, and in October 2007, the Company made a
true-up payment to Land O’Lakes in the amount of $45.7 million,
plus interest. During fiscal 2009, the final true-up amount was
determined, and the Company received $0.9 million from

during its first quarter of fiscal 2009. The impairments did not
affect the Company’s cash flows and did not have a bearing

Land O’Lakes.

upon its compliance with any covenants under its credit facilities.

The distribution of assets the Company received from Agriliance

Due to the outcome of the VeraSun bankruptcy, during the third

for the crop nutrients business had a book value of $248.2 mil-

quarter of fiscal 2009, the Company wrote off the remaining
investment of $3.6 million.

lion. The Company recorded 50% of the value of the net assets
received at book value due to the Company’s ownership interest
in those assets when they were held by Agriliance, and 50% of

During the year ended August 31, 2007, the Company invested
$22.2 million in Multigrain AG (Multigrain) for a 37.5% equity
position in a Brazil-based grain handling and merchandising
company, Multigrain S.A., headquartered in Sao Paulo, Brazil.
The venture, included in the Company’s Ag Business segment,
includes grain storage, export facilities and grain production and
builds on the Company’s South American soybean origination.
During the year ended August 31, 2008, the Company increased
its equity position through a purchase from an existing equity
holder for $10.0 million, and also invested an additional
$30.3 million which was used by Multigrain to invest in a joint
venture that acquired production farmland and related operations. During the first quarter of fiscal 2009, the Company
invested $76.3 million for Multigrain’s increased capital needs
resulting from expansion of its operations. The Company’s cur-

the value of the net assets at fair value using the purchase
method of accounting. Values assigned to the net assets distributed to the Company were:
( d ollars in t housand s)

Receivables

$

5,219

Inventories

174,620

Other current assets

256,390

Investments

6,096

Property, plant and equipment

29,682

Other assets
Customer advance payments

11,717
(206,252)

Accounts payable

(5,584)

Accrued expenses
Total net assets received

(3,163)
$ 268,725

rent ownership interest is 39.35%.
During the year ended August 31, 2008, the Company’s net
Agriliance LLC (Agriliance) is owned and governed by United

contribution to Agriliance was $235.0 million which supported its

Country Brands, LLC (50%) and Land O’Lakes, Inc. (Land
O’Lakes) (50%). United Country Brands, LLC is 100% owned

working capital requirements for ongoing operations, with Land
O’Lakes making equal contributions to Agriliance. During the

by CHS. The Company accounts for its Agriliance investment

year ended August 31, 2009, the Company received a $25.0 mil-

using the equity method of accounting within the Ag Business

lion distribution from Agriliance as a return of capital.

segment. Prior to September 1, 2007, Agriliance was a wholesale and retail crop nutrients and crop protection products
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Agriliance continues to exist as a 50-50 joint venture and primarily operates and sells agronomy products on a retail basis.
The Company with Land O’Lakes, has sold or reached agreement to sell a substantial number of the Agriliance retail facilities
to various third parties, as well as to the Company and to Land
O’Lakes. Sales which have not yet closed are anticipated to
close in fiscal 2010.

5

Property, Plant
and Equipment

A summary of property, plant and equipment as of August 31,
2009 and 2008 is as follows:
( d ollars in t housand s)

Cofina Financial, a finance company formed in fiscal 2005,
makes seasonal and term loans to member cooperatives and
businesses and to individual producers of agricultural products.
Through August 31, 2008, the Company accounted for its 49%
ownership interest in Cofina Financial, within Corporate and
Other, using the equity method of accounting. On September 1,
2008, Cofina became a wholly-owned subsidiary when the
Company purchased the remaining 51% ownership interest

Land and land improvements
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Office and other
Construction in progress
Less accumulated depreciation
and amortization

for $53.3 million. The purchase price included cash of $48.5 million and the assumption of certain liabilities of $4.8 million.
During the year ended August 31, 2009, the Company sold its
available-for-sale investment of common stock in the New York

2 009

2 00 8

$ 110,635

$ 104,306

497,956

474,399

2,879,984

2,763,288

94,429

90,061

243,929

89,795

3,826,933

3,521,849

1,727,608

1,573,544

$2,099,325

$1,948,305

Depreciation expense for the years ended August 31, 2009,
2008 and 2007, was $180.9 million, $162.9 million and

Mercantile Exchange (NYMEX Holdings) for proceeds of

$135.1 million, respectively.

$16.1 million and recorded a pretax gain of $15.7 million. The
Company also received proceeds of $25.5 million from the sale

The Company is leasing certain of its wheat milling facilities and

of a Canadian agronomy investment during the year ended

related equipment to Horizon Milling, LLC under an operating
lease agreement. The net book value of the leased milling assets

August 31, 2009, and recorded a gain of $2.8 million.

at August 31, 2009 and 2008 was $65.3 million and $70.8 million,
After a fiscal 2005 IPO transaction for CF Industries Inc., CHS
held an ownership interest in CF Industries Holdings, Inc. (the

respectively, net of accumulated depreciation of $65.1 million
and $59.6 million, respectively.

post-IPO name) of approximately 3.9% or 2,150,396 shares.
During the year ended August 31, 2007, CHS sold
540,000 shares of the stock for proceeds of $10.9 million, and
recorded a pretax gain of $5.3 million. During the year ended
August 31, 2008, CHS sold all of its remaining 1,610,396 shares
of stock for proceeds of $108.3 million and recorded a pretax
gain of $91.7 million.
Various agreements with other owners of investee companies
and a majority-owned subsidiary set out parameters whereby
CHS may buy and sell additional interests in those companies,
upon the occurrence of certain events, at fair values determinable as set forth in the specific agreements.
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Intangible assets acquired as part of business acquisitions during the years ended August 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, totaled
$10.6 million, $18.6 million and $6.5 million, respectively, and

Other Assets

during fiscal 2009, were from acquisitions in our Ag Business

Other assets as of August 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:
( do l l a rs in t ho us a nd s)

Goodwill
Customer lists, less accumulated
amortization of $12,336 and $7,454,
respectively
Non-compete covenants, less
accumulated amortization of $3,173
and $2,668, respectively

2009

$ 17,346

22,689

2008

$

3,804

20,216

segment and a distillers dried grain business included in the Ag
Business segment, acquired and paid for in fiscal 2008 and
2007. Various other cash acquisitions of intangibles totaled
$2.4 million, $3.4 million and $9.1 million during the years ended
August 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively.

6,785

3,265

Intangible assets amortization expense for the years ended
August 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, was $12.2 million, $15.9 million
and $3.2 million, respectively. The estimated amortization

Trademarks and other intangible
assets, less accumulated amortization
of $17,291 and $17,215, respectively

20,862

25,918

expense related to intangible assets subject to amortization

Prepaid pension and other benefits

52,934

64,023

Capitalized major maintenance

30,075

53,303

for the next five years will approximate $11.4 million for the first
year, $8.2 million for each of the next three years, and $3.1 million

Cofina Financial notes receivable
Notes receivable
Other

for the following year.

125,447
7,796

12,356

13,038

7,073

$296,972

$189,958

On September 1, 2008, the Company purchased the remaining
51% ownership interest of Cofina Financial, resulting in $6.9 million of goodwill. During the year ended August 31, 2009, the
Company had acquisitions in its Ag Business segment which
resulted in $8.4 million of goodwill, reflecting the purchase price
allocations. Also during the year ended August 31, 2009, dispositions in the Company’s Energy and Ag Business segments
resulted in a decrease in goodwill of $1.7 million.
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segment. During fiscal 2008, the Company purchased a soybased food ingredients business included in the Processing

7

Notes Payable and Long-Term Debt

Notes payable and long-term debt as of August 31, 2009 and 2008 consisted of the following:
( do l l a rs in th ous a nd s )

Notes payable(a)(k)
Cofina Financial notes payable(l)
Long-term debt:
Revolving term loans from cooperative and other banks, payable in installments
through 2009(b)(k)
Revolving term loans from cooperative and other banks, payable in equal
installments beginning in 2013 through 2018(c)(k)
Private placement, payable in equal installments beginning in 2013 through
2017(d)(k)
Private placement, payable in equal installments through 2013(e)(k)
Private placement, payable in installments through 2018(f)(k)
Private placement, payable in equal installments beginning in 2011 through
2015(g)(k)
Private placement, payable in equal installments through 2011(h)(k)
Private placement, payable in its entirety in 2010(i)(k)
Private placement, payable in its entirety in 2011(i)(k)
Private placement, payable in equal installments beginning in 2014 through
2018(i)(k)
Industrial revenue bonds, payable in its entirety in 2011
Other notes and contracts(j)
Total long-term debt
Less current portion
Long-term portion

Weighted-average interest rates at August 31:
Notes payable
Cofina Financial notes payable
Long-term debt

Interest Rates at
August 31, 2009

0.96% to 8.50%
1.00% to 2.04%

2009

2008

19,183
227,689
$ 246,872

$ 106,154

$

$ 106,154

$
5.59%

49,700

$ 150,000

150,000

6.18%
6.81%
4.96% to 5.60%

400,000
150,000
121,923

400,000
187,500
139,615

5.25%
7.43% to 7.90%
4.08%
4.39%

125,000
22,857
15,000
15,000

125,000
34,286
15,000
15,000

5.78%
5.23%
1.89% to 12.17%

50,000
3,925
18,248
1,071,953
83,492
$ 988,461

50,000
3,925
24,829
1,194,855
118,636
$1,076,219

2009

2008

2.84%
1.71%
5.93%

2.73%
5.90%

(a) The Company finances its working capital needs through short-term lines of credit with a syndication of domestic and international banks. One of these revolving lines of credit is
a five-year $1.3 billion committed facility, with no amount outstanding on August 31, 2009, compared to $75.0 million outstanding on August 31, 2008. During fiscal 2009, the
Company renewed its 364-day revolving line of credit with a syndication of banks for a committed amount of $300.0 million, with no amounts outstanding on August 31, 2009
and 2008. In addition to these short-term lines of credit, the Company has a one-year committed credit facility dedicated to NCRA, with a syndication of banks in the amount of
$15.0 million, with no amounts outstanding on August 31, 2009 and 2008. Our wholly-owned subsidiary, CHS Europe S.A., has uncommitted lines of credit to finance its normal
trade grain transactions, of which $15.7 million and $31.2 million was outstanding on August 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively, and was collateralized by certain inventories and
receivables. The Company has two commercial paper programs totaling up to $125.0 million with two banks participating in the five-year revolving credit facility. The commercial
paper programs do not increase the committed borrowing capacity in that the Company is required to have at least an equal amount of undrawn capacity available on the fiveyear revolving facility as to the amount of commercial paper issued. On August 31, 2009 and 2008, there was no commercial paper outstanding. Miscellaneous short-term notes
payable totaled $3.5 million on August 31, 2009.
(b) The Company established a long-term credit agreement, which committed $200.0 million of long-term borrowing capacity to the Company through May 31, 1999, of which
$164.0 million was drawn before the expiration date of that commitment.
(c) In December 2007, the Company established a 10-year long-term credit agreement through a syndication of cooperative banks in the amount of $150.0 million.
(d) In October 2007, the Company entered into a private placement with several insurance companies for long-term debt in the amount of $400.0 million.
(e) In June 1998, the Company entered into a private placement with several insurance companies for long-term debt in the amount of $225.0 million.
(f) In October 2002, the Company entered into a private placement with several insurance companies for long-term debt in the amount of $175.0 million.
(g) In September 2004, the Company entered into a private placement with several insurance companies for long-term debt in the amount of $125.0 million.
(h) In January 2001, the Company entered into a note purchase and private shelf agreement with Prudential Insurance Company. A long-term note was issued for $25.0 million and
a subsequent note for $55.0 million was issued in March 2001.
(i) In March 2004, the Company entered into a note purchase and private shelf agreement with Prudential Capital Group. In April 2004, two long-term notes were issued for $15.0
million each. In April 2007, the agreement was amended with Prudential Investment Management, Inc. and several other participating insurance companies to expand the
uncommitted facility from $70.0 million to $150.0 million. In February 2008, the Company borrowed $50.0 million under the shelf arrangement.
(j) Other notes and contracts payable of $10.3 million are collateralized by property, plant and equipment, with a cost of $21.9 million, less accumulated depreciation of $7.5 million
on August 31, 2009.
(k) The debt is unsecured; however, restrictive covenants under various agreements have requirements for maintenance of minimum working capital levels and other
financial ratios.
(l) Cofina Funding, LLC (Cofina Funding), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Cofina Financial, has available credit totaling $212.0 million as of August 31, 2009, under note purchase
agreements with various purchasers, through the issuance of short-term notes payable. Cofina Financial sells eligible commercial loans receivable it has originated to Cofina
Funding, which are then pledged as collateral under the note purchase agreements. The notes payable issued by Cofina Funding bear interest at variable rates based on
commercial paper and/or Eurodollar rates, with a weighted average Eurodollar interest rate of 1.77% as of August 31, 2009. Borrowings by Cofina Funding utilizing the issuance
of commercial paper under the note purchase agreements totaled $101.7 million as of August 31, 2009. As of August 31, 2009, $64.7 million of related loans receivable were
accounted for as sales when they were surrendered in accordance with SFAS No. 140, “Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of
Liabilities.” As a result, the net borrowings under the note purchase agreements were $37.0 million. Cofina Financial also sells loan commitments it has originated to ProPartners
Financial (ProPartners) on a recourse basis. The total capacity for commitments under the ProPartners program is $120.0 million. The total outstanding commitments under the
program totaled $95.2 million as of August 31, 2009, of which $74.2 million was borrowed under these commitments with an interest rate of 2.04%. In addition, Cofina Financial
borrows funds under short-term notes issued as part of a surplus funds program. Borrowings under this program are unsecured and bear interest at variable rates ranging from
1.00% to 1.50% as of August 31, 2009, and are due upon demand. Borrowings under these notes totaled $116.5 million as of August 31, 2009.
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Deferred taxes are comprised of basis differences related to

Notes Payable and
Long-Term Debt, continued

investments, accrued liabilities and certain federal and state tax
credits. NCRA files separate tax returns and, as such, these
items must be assessed independent of the Company’s
deferred tax assets when determining recoverability.

Based on quoted market prices of similar debt, the carrying
value of the Company’s long-term debt approximated its

Deferred tax assets and liabilities as of August 31, 2009 and 2008

fair value.

are as follows:
( d ol l a rs in th ou san ds )

The aggregate amount of long-term debt payable as of
August 31, 2009 is as follows:

Accrued expenses

( do l l a rs in t ho us a nd s)

2010

$

83,492

2011

112,389

2012

95,209

2013

181,127

2014

154,959

Thereafter

444,777
$1,071,953

( do l l a rs in t ho us a nd s)

Interest expense

2009

2008

2007

$100,123

$ 63,528

Capitalized interest

(5,201)

(9,759)

(11,717)

Interest income

(9,981)

(13,904)

(20,713)

Interest, net

$70,487

$ 76,460

$ 31,098

$ 81,554

98,922

78,732

56,987

51,306

Loss carryforwards

65,180

286

Other

35,435

15,095

340,420

226,973

Pension

34,103

22,774

Investments

63,780

17,722

9,041

15,148

308,179

297,276

Total deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities:

Other
Total deferred tax liabilities

$85,669

$ 83,896

Tax credit carryforwards

Property, plant and equipment

is as follows:

2008

Postretirement health care and
deferred compensation

Major maintenance

Interest, net for the years ended August 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007

2009

Deferred tax assets:

Deferred tax assets valuation reserve
Net deferred tax liabilities

32,681

10,725

447,784

363,645

(32,119)
$139,483

(19,808)
$156,480

During the fiscal years ended August 31, 2009 and 2008, the
Company provided a valuation allowance of $16.3 million and
$11.6 million, respectively, related to the carryforward of certain

8

capital losses that will expire on August 31, 2014. As of
August 31, 2009, the Company and NCRA have generated
$48.3 million and $23.3 million in federal and state net operating

Income Taxes

loss carryforwards for income tax purposes. These loss carryforwards will expire on August 31, 2029.

The provision for income taxes for the years ended August 31,
2009, 2008 and 2007 is as follows:
( do l l a rs in t ho us a nd s)

2008

Current

$18,515

$45,527

$(10,200)

August 31, 2014. The Company’s general business credit car-

Deferred

31,665

15,578

42,068

Valuation allowance

12,311

10,433

8,800

ryforward of $51.5 million will begin to expire on August 31,
2027. During the year ended August 31, 2007, NCRA provided a

$62,491

$71,538

$ 40,668

$9.4 million valuation allowance related to its carryforward of

Income taxes

2007

The Company’s current tax provision is significantly impacted by
the utilization of loss carryforwards and tax benefits passed to
the Company from NCRA. The passthrough tax benefits are
associated with refinery upgrades that enable NCRA to produce
ultra-low sulfur fuels as mandated by the Environmental Protection Agency.
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The Company generated a $5.4 million foreign tax credit carryforward during the fiscal year August 31, 2009, that will expire on

2009

certain state tax credits. This allowance was reduced by $1.1
million during its year ended August 31, 2008, and $4.0 million
during its year ended August 31, 2009, due to a change in the
amount of credits that are estimated to be used. The remaining
allowance is necessary due to the limited amount of taxable
income generated by NCRA on an annual basis.

As of August 31, 2009, net deferred taxes of $39.2 million and

the Company’s production tax credits under Section 199 for

$178.7 million are included in current assets and other liabilities,
respectively ($49.4 million and $205.9 million in current assets

which the ultimate deductibility is highly certain but for which
there is uncertainty about the amount deductible in prior peri-

and other liabilities, respectively, as of August 31, 2008).

ods. The unrecognized tax benefit, if recognized, would affect
the annual effective tax rate.

The reconciliation of the statutory federal income tax rates to the
effective tax rates for the years ended August 31, 2009, 2008 and

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to

2007 is as follows:

unrecognized tax benefits in its provision for income taxes.
During the years ended August 31, 2009 and 2008, the Com-

2009

2008

2007

35.0%

35.0%

35.0%

3.9

3.9

3.9

pany recognized approximately $0.3 million and $44 thousand

Statutory federal income
tax rate
State and local income
taxes, net of federal
income tax benefit
Patronage earnings

(29.2)

(29.2)

(27.1)

Export activities at rates
other than the U.S.
statutory rate

0.4

(0.1)

(1.6)

Valuation allowance

2.8

1.2

1.1

(0.8)

(2.3)

(3.6)

2.0

(0.3)

(2.6)

Tax credits
Other
Effective tax rate

14.1%

8.2%

5.1%

in interest, respectively. The Company had approximately $0.6
million and $0.3 million for the payment of interest accrued on
August 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

9

Equities

In accordance with the by-laws and by action of the Board of
Directors, annual net earnings from patronage sources are distributed to consenting patrons following the close of each fiscal

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, and various state and foreign jurisdictions. With few
exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to U.S. federal,
state and local examinations by tax authorities for years ending
on or before August 31, 2004.

year, and are based on amounts using financial statement earnings. The cash portion of the patronage distribution is determined annually by the Board of Directors, with the balance
issued in the form of capital equity certificates. Total patronage
refunds for fiscal 2009 are estimated to be $426.5 million, while
the cash portion, determined by the Board of Directors to be

The Company adopted the provisions of FIN No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes”, on September 1, 2007. As a

35%, is estimated to be $149.3 million. The actual patronage
refunds and cash portion for fiscal years 2008 and 2007 were

result of the implementation of FIN No. 48, no significant
increase or decrease in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits

$648.9 million ($227.6 million in cash) and $557.2 million ($195.0

was recorded. A reconciliation of the gross beginning and end-

patronage losses incurred in fiscal 2009 from the wholesale crop
nutrients business, totaling approximately $60 million, will be

ing amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows:
( do l l a rs in t ho us a nd s)

Beginning balances
Increases for current year tax
positions
Increases for tax positions of prior
years

2009

2008

offset against the fiscal 2008 wholesale crop nutrients and CF

$ 5,840

$ 7,259

patronage through the cancellation of capital equity certificates.

1,381

Annual net savings from sources other than patronage may be

65,697

added to the unallocated capital reserve or, upon action by the
Board of Directors, may be allocated to members in the form of
nonpatronage equity certificates. Redemptions are at the dis-

Reductions for tax positions of prior
years
Reductions attributable to statute
expiration
Balances at August 31

million in cash), respectively. By action of the Board of Directors,

(1,419)
(399)
$72,519

cretion of the Board of Directors.
Redemptions of capital equity certificates approved by the

$ 5,840

The increase in the unrecognized tax benefit of $65.7 million
during fiscal 2009 relates to clarifications received from the
Internal Revenue Service on the method used for calculating

Board of Directors are divided into two pools, one for nonindividuals (primarily member cooperatives) who may participate in an annual pro-rata program for equities held by them and
another for individual members who are eligible for equity
redemptions at age 70 or upon death. The amount that each
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equity certificates were redeemed in fiscal years 2009, 2008 and
2007, respectively, by issuance of shares of the Company’s 8%
Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock (Preferred Stock). The

Equities, continued

issued was $25.90, $25.65 and $26.09, which was the closing
price per share of the stock on the NASDAQ Global Select

non-individual member receives under the pro-rata program in

Market on January 23, 2009, February 11, 2008 and February 8,

any year will be determined by multiplying the dollars available
for pro-rata redemptions, if any that year, as determined by the

2007, respectively.

Board of Directors, by a fraction, the numerator of which is the

The Preferred Stock is listed on the NASDAQ Global Select

amount of patronage certificates eligible for redemption held by
them, and the denominator of which is the sum of the patronage

Market under the symbol CHSCP. On August 31, 2009, the
Company had 10,976,107 shares of Preferred Stock outstand-

certificates eligible for redemption held by all eligible holders of

ing with a total redemption value of approximately $274.4 mil-

patronage certificates that are not individuals. In addition to the
annual pro-rata program, the Board of Directors approved addi-

lion, excluding accumulated dividends. The Preferred Stock
accumulates dividends at a rate of 8% per year, which are

tional equity redemptions in prior years targeting older capital

payable quarterly, and is redeemable at the Company’s option.

equity certificates which were redeemed in cash in fiscal 2008
and 2007. In accordance with authorization from the Board of

At this time, the Company has no current plan or intent to
redeem any Preferred Stock.

Directors, the Company expects total redemptions related to the
year ended August 31, 2009, that will be distributed in fiscal
2010, to be approximately $50.1 million. These expected distributions are classified as a current liability on the August 31, 2009
Consolidated Balance Sheet.

10

Benefit Plans

For the years ended August 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, the

The Company has various pension and other defined benefit

Company redeemed in cash, equities in accordance with autho-

and defined contribution plans, in which substantially all

rization from the Board of Directors, in the amounts of $49.7
million, $81.8 million and $70.8 million, respectively. An addi-

employees may participate. The Company also has non-qualified supplemental executive and board retirement plans.

tional $49.9 million, $46.4 million and $35.9 million of capital
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amount of equities redeemed with each share of Preferred Stock

Financial information on changes in benefit obligation and plan assets funded and balance sheets status as of August 31, 2009 and
2008 is as follows:
Qualified
Pension Benefits
2009
2008

(dollars in thousands)

Non-Qualified
Pension Benefits
2009
2008

Other Benefits
2009
2008

Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of period

$354,134

$346,319

$ 38,190

$ 35,644

$ 34,378

Service cost

18,252

15,387

1,385

1,246

1,153

1,175

Interest cost

25,296

21,266

2,781

2,190

2,971

1,814

Actuarial loss (gain)

6,872

3,493

(2,940)

492

(2,024)

Assumption change

38,815

(9,196)

3,274

(756)

3,317

Special agreements

467

713
(61)

283

Medicare D

4,000

356

Benefits paid
Benefit obligation at end of period

$ 28,001

(27,900)

(23,135)

$415,469

$354,134

$366,550

$382,431

(2,166)

(1,093)

314

(2,232)

(1,578)

$ 40,524

$ 38,190

$ 38,202

$ 34,378

$ 2,166

$ 1,093

$ 2,232

$ 1,578

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period
Actual loss on plan assets

(38,169)

Company contributions

109,700

(18,045)
25,299

Benefits paid

(27,900)

(23,135)

(2,166)
—

(1,093)
$

—

(2,232)
$

—

(1,578)

Fair value of plan assets at end of period

$410,181

$366,550

$

$

Funded status at end of period

$ (5,288)

$ 12,416

$(40,524)

$(38,190)

$(38,202)

$(34,378)

—

$

$ 13,234
$ (2,936)

$ (1,397)

$ (2,168)

$ (2,412)

(37,588)

(35,443)

(36,034)

(31,777)

$(38,202)

$(34,189)

$ 3,522

$ 4,581

Amounts recognized on balance sheet:
Non-current assets

5,404

Accrued benefit cost:
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Ending balance

(10,692)

(818)

$ (5,288)

$ 12,416

$(40,524)

$(36,840)

$ 14,985

$ 17,444

$ 1,055

$ 1,697

227,803

114,457

8,912

9,328

Amounts recognized in accumulated other
comprehensive income (pre-tax):
Net transition obligation
Prior service cost (credit)
Net loss (gain)
Minority interest
Ending balance

(21,115)
$221,673

(10,776)
$121,125

(195)
$ 9,772

(70)
$ 10,955

(498)

(724)

827

(786)

(1,402)
$ 2,449

(1,079)
$ 1,992

The accumulated benefit obligation of the qualified pension plans was $386.5 million and $331.4 million at August 31, 2009 and 2008,
respectively. The accumulated benefit obligation of the non-qualified pension plans was $26.5 million and $27.4 million at August 31,
2009 and 2008, respectively.
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Benefit Plans, continued

For measurement purposes, an 8.0% annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered health care benefits was assumed for the
year ended August 31, 2009. The rate was assumed to decrease gradually to 5.0% by 2043 and remain at that level thereafter.
Components of net periodic benefit costs for the years ended August 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:
Qualified
Pension Benefits
2009
2008
2007

(dollars in thousands)

Non-Qualified
Pension Benefits
2009
2008
2007

2009

Other Benefits
2008
2007

Components of net periodic benefit costs:
Service cost

$ 16,318 $ 15,387 $ 14,360

Interest cost
Expected return on assets

22,837

21,266

19,259

(31,258)

(31,274)

(29,171)

$ 1,200

$ 1,246

$ 1,023

$ 1,101

$ 1,175

2,399

2,190

1,480

2,771

1,814

283

4,000

Special agreements

467

$

957
1,668

Prior service cost (credit)
amortization

2,115

2,164

867

546

579

494

347

(320)

(319)

Actuarial loss (gain) amortization

5,046

4,887

5,766

667

841

77

(215)

(165)

(231)

936

935

936

$ 5,223

$ 7,439

$ 3,011

6.25%

Transition amount amortization
Net periodic benefit cost

$ 15,058 $ 12,430 $ 11,081

$ 4,812

Adjustment to retained earnings for
measurement date change

$ 1,593

$

$ 5,323

$ 3,074

763

$

294

Average assumptions:
Discount rate

6.05%

6.25%

6.25%

6.05%

6.25%

6.25%

6.05%

6.25%

Expected return on plan assets

8.25%

8.75%

8.75%

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

Rate of compensation increase

4.50%

4.50%

4.50%

4.50%

4.50%

4.50%

4.50%

4.50%

4.50%

The estimated amortization in fiscal 2010 from accumulated

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on

other comprehensive income into net periodic benefit cost is
as follows:

the amounts reported for the health care plans. A one-percentage point change in the assumed health care cost trend rates

(dollars in thousands)

Qualified
Pension
Benefits

NonQualified
Pension
Benefits

Amortization of transition
obligation

would have the following effects:
Other
Benefits

$ 936

Amortization of prior
service cost (benefit)

$ 2,293

$419

(187)

Amortization of net
actuarial loss (gain)

10,123

630

(39)

Minority interest

(1,368)

(10)

(102)

(dollars in thousands)

Effect on total of service and
interest cost components
Effect on postretirement benefit
obligation

1% Increase

1% Decrease

$ 335

$ (280)

2,700

(2,330)

The Company provides defined life insurance and health care
benefits for certain retired employees and Board of Directors’
participants. The plan is contributory based on years of service
and family status, with retiree contributions adjusted annually.
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The Company has other contributory defined contribution plans

The discount rate reflects the rate at which the associated ben-

covering substantially all employees. Total contributions by the
Company to these plans were $14.9 million, $12.2 million and

efits could be effectively settled as of the measurement date. In
estimating this rate, the Company looks at rates of return on

$10.7 million, for the years ended August 31, 2009, 2008 and

fixed-income investments of similar duration to the liabilities in

2007, respectively.

the plans that receive high, investment grade ratings by recognized ratings agencies.

The Company contributed $109.7 million to qualified pension
plans in fiscal year 2009. Based on the funded status of the
qualified pension plans as of August 31, 2009, the Company

The investment portfolio contains a diversified portfolio of investment categories, including domestic and international equities,

does not expect to contribute to these plans in fiscal 2010. The

fixed-income securities and real estate. Securities are also diver-

Company expects to pay $5.1 million to participants of the nonqualified pension and postretirement benefit plans during fis-

sified in terms of domestic and international securities, short and
long-term securities, growth and value equities, large and small

cal 2010.

cap stocks, as well as active and passive management styles.

The Company’s retiree benefit payments which reflect expected

The committees believe that with prudent risk tolerance and

future service are anticipated to be paid as follows:

asset diversification, the plans should be able to meet pension
obligations in the future.

Qualified
Pension
Benefits

NonQualified
Pension
Benefits

2010

$ 26,679

$ 2,936

$ 2,168

$100

2011

27,538

7,085

2,394

100

2012

30,123

4,668

2,608

100

Cash

14.4%

2013

32,566

4,236

2,642

100

Debt

24.5

29.6

(dollars in
thousands)

2014
2015-2019

Other Benefits
Gross
Medicare D

The Company’s pension plans’ average asset allocations by
asset categories are as follows:
2009

2008

6.3%

34,124

2,913

2,830

100

Equities

57.0

57.8

209,070

17,452

14,453

500

Real estate

0.1

4.7

Other

4.0

1.6

Total

100.0%

100.0%

The Company has trusts that hold the assets for the defined
benefit plans. The Company and NCRA have qualified plan
committees that set investment guidelines with the assistance
of external consultants. Investment objectives for the Company’s plan assets are:
• optimization of the long-term returns on plan assets at an
acceptable level of risk, and
• maintenance of a broad diversification across asset classes
and among investment managers, and focus on long-term
return objectives.
Asset allocation targets promote optimal expected return and
volatility characteristics given the long-term time horizon for
fulfilling the obligations of the pension plans. An annual analysis
on the risk versus the return of the investment portfolio is conducted to justify the expected long-term rate of return assumption. The Company generally uses long-term historical return
information for the targeted asset mix identified in asset and
liability studies. Adjustments are made to the expected longterm rate of return assumption, when deemed necessary, based
upon revised expectations of future investment performance of
the overall investment markets.
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Segment Reporting

The Company aligned its segments based on an assessment of

The Company includes other business operations in Corporate
and Other because of the nature of their products and services,
as well as the relative revenue size of those businesses. These
businesses primarily include the Company’s financing, insurance, hedging and
crop production.

other

service

activities related

to

how its businesses operate and the products and services it
sells. As a result of this assessment, the Company has three
segments: Energy, Ag Business and Processing.

Reconciling Amounts represent the elimination of revenues
between segments. Such transactions are conducted at market
prices to more accurately evaluate the profitability of the indi-
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The Energy segment derives its revenues through refining,
wholesaling, marketing and retailing of petroleum products.

vidual segments.

The Ag Business segment derives its revenues through the

The Company assigns certain corporate general and adminis-

sales of wholesale crop nutrients, the origination and marketing
of grain, including service activities conducted at export termi-

trative expenses to its segments based on use of such services
and allocates other services based on factors or considerations

nals, through the retail sales of petroleum and agronomy prod-

relevant to the costs incurred.

ucts, processed sunflowers, feed and farm supplies, and
records equity income from investments in the Company’s

Expenses that are incurred at the corporate level for the purpose

agronomy joint ventures, grain export joint ventures and other

of the general operation of the Company are allocated to the

investments. The Processing segment derives its revenues from
the sales of soybean meal, soybean refined oil and soy-based

segments based upon factors which management considers
non-symmetrical. Due to efficiencies in scale, cost allocations

food products, and records equity income from two wheat mill-

and intersegment activity, management does not represent that

ing joint ventures, a vegetable oil-based food manufacturing and
distribution joint venture, and an ethanol manufactur-

these segments, if operated independently, would report the
income before income taxes and other financial information

ing company.

as presented.

Segment information for the years ended August 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 is as follows:
(dollars in thousands)

Energy

Ag Business

Processing

Corporate
and Other

For the year ended August 31, 2009:
Revenues
Cost of goods sold
Gross profit
Marketing, general and administrative
Operating earnings
(Gain) loss on investments
Interest, net
Equity income from investments
Minority interests
Income before income taxes

$ 7,639,838
7,110,324
529,514
125,104
404,410
(15,748)
5,483
(4,044)
59,166
$ 359,553

$17,196,448
16,937,877
258,571
158,395
100,176
(2,285)
46,995
(18,222)
614
$
73,074

$1,142,636
1,099,177
43,459
25,724
17,735
74,338
21,841
(82,525)

$

$

4,081

$

Intersegment revenues

$

$

$

(2,759)

(251,626)

(39,919)

45,298
(3,173)
48,471
46,076
2,395

Reconciling
Amounts

$(294,304)
(294,304)
—
—

(3,832)
(963)
7,190

$

—

$ 294,304

To t a l

$25,729,916
24,849,901
880,015
355,299
524,716
56,305
70,487
(105,754)
59,780
$ 443,898
$

—

Goodwill

$

1,983

$

8,465

$

6,898

$

17,346

Capital expenditures

$

233,112

$

72,155

$

7,444

$

2,794

$

315,505

Depreciation and amortization

$

118,260

$

53,421

$

16,805

$

7,864

$

196,350

Total identifiable assets at August 31, 2009

$ 3,025,522

$ 2,987,394

$ 685,865

$1,171,064

For the year ended August 31, 2008:
Revenues
Cost of goods sold
Gross profit
Marketing, general and administrative
Operating earnings
(Gain) loss on investments
Interest, net
Equity income from investments
Minority interests
Income (loss) before income taxes

$11,499,814
11,027,459
472,355
111,121
361,234
(35)
(5,227)
(5,054)
71,805
$ 299,745

$19,696,907
19,088,079
608,828
160,364
448,464
(100,830)
63,665
(83,053)
355
$ 568,327

$1,299,209
1,240,944
58,265
26,089
32,176
72,602
21,995
(56,615)

$

$

(5,806)

$

$

$

(338)

(36,972)

31,363
(2,751)
34,114
32,391
1,723
(930)
(3,973)
(5,691)

$(359,832)
(359,832)
—

12,317

$

Intersegment revenues

$

Goodwill

$

3,654

$

150

Capital expenditures

$

251,401

$

56,704

$

5,994

$

Depreciation and amortization

$

107,949

$

50,933

$

15,902

$

Total identifiable assets at August 31, 2008

$ 3,216,852

$ 4,172,950

$ 748,989

$ 633,187

$ 8,105,067
7,264,180
840,887
94,939
745,948

$ 8,575,389
8,388,476
186,913
97,299
89,614
(5,348)
28,550
(51,830)
(16)
$ 118,258

$ 754,743
726,510
28,233
23,545
4,688
(15,268)
14,783
(48,446)

$

$

$

For the year ended August 31, 2007:
Revenues
Cost of goods sold
Gross profit
Marketing, general and administrative
Operating earnings
Gain on investments
Interest, net
Equity income from investments
Minority interests
Income before income taxes

(322,522)

$ 7,869,845

—

—

$ 359,832

$32,167,461
30,993,899
1,173,562
329,965
843,597
(29,193)
76,460
(150,413)
72,160
$ 874,583
$

—

$

3,804

4,460

$

318,559

6,479

$

181,263

28,465
(2,261)
30,726
29,574
1,152

$ 8,771,978
$(247,672)
(247,672)
—
—

$

(6,106)
(4,468)
143,230
613,292

Intersegment revenues

$

(228,930)

$

(18,372)

$

$

—

Capital expenditures

$

313,246

$

44,020

$

12,092

$

3,942

$

373,300

Depreciation and amortization

$

86,558

$

33,567

$

15,116

$

5,355

$

140,596

53,619

(6,129)
(4,941)

$17,215,992
16,129,233
1,086,759
245,357
841,402
(20,616)
31,098
(109,685)
143,214
$ 797,391

12,222

(370)

$

—

$ 247,672
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The Company determines the fair market values of its readily

Segment Reporting, continued

SFAS No. 157, which requires an entity to maximize the use

International sales for the years ended August 31, 2009, 2008

of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable
inputs when measuring fair value. Observable inputs are inputs

and 2007 are as follows:

that reflect the assumptions market participants would use in

(dollars in millions)

Africa
Asia
Europe
North America,
excluding U.S.
South America

12

2009

2008

2007

pricing the asset or liability based on the best information available in the circumstances. The standard describes three levels

$ 305

$ 505

$ 229

within its hierarchy that may be used to measure fair value

3,664

3,000

1,130

371

488

178

1,253

1,399

900

which are:
Level 1:

491

922

608

$6,084

$6,314

$3,045

Values are based on unadjusted quoted prices in

active markets for identical assets or liabilities. These assets
and liabilities include the Company’s exchange traded derivative
contracts,

Rabbi

Trust

investments

and

available-for-

sale investments.

Fair Value
Measurements

Level 2:

Values are based on quoted prices for similar assets

or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or
similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active, or other

Effective September 1, 2008, the Company partially adopted

inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by observable

SFAS No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” as it relates to financial assets and liabilities. FSP No. 157-2, “Effective Date of

market data for substantially the full term of the assets or liabilities. These assets and liabilities include the Company’s readily

SFAS No. 157”, delays the effective date of SFAS No. 157 for

marketable inventories, interest rate swaps, forward commodity

all non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities that are not
remeasured at fair value on a recurring basis until fiscal years

and freight purchase and sales contracts, flat price or basis fixed

beginning after November 15, 2008. SFAS No. 157 defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America and expands disclosures about fair
value measurements. SFAS No. 157 also eliminates the deferral
of gains and losses at inception associated with certain derivative contracts whose fair value was not evidenced by observable market data and requires the impact of this change in
accounting for derivative contracts be recorded as a cumulative
effect adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings in
the year of adoption. The Company did not have any deferred
gains or losses at the inception of derivative contracts, and

derivative contracts and other OTC derivatives whose value is
determined with inputs that are based on exchange traded
prices, adjusted for location specific inputs that are primarily
observable in the market or can be derived principally from, or
corroborated by, observable market data.
Level 3: Values are generated from unobservable inputs that
are supported by little or no market activity and that are a
significant component of the fair value of the assets or liabilities.
These unobservable inputs would reflect the Company’s own
estimates of assumptions that market participants would use in
pricing related assets or liabilities. Valuation techniques might

therefore no cumulative adjustment to the opening balance of

include the use of pricing models, discounted cash flow models
or similar techniques. These assets include certain short-term

retained earnings was made upon adoption.

investments made by the Company’s NCRA subsidiary.

SFAS No. 157 defines fair value as the price that would be
received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price)
in our principal or most advantageous market for the asset or
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on
the measurement date.
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marketable inventories, derivative contracts and certain other
assets, based on the fair value hierarchy established in

The following table presents assets and liabilities, included in the Company’s Consolidated Balance Sheet, that are recognized at fair
value on a recurring basis, and indicates the fair value hierarchy utilized to determine such fair value. As required by SFAS No. 157,
assets and liabilities are classified, in their entirety, based on the lowest level of input that is a significant component of the fair value
measurement. The lowest level of input is considered Level 3. The Company’s assessment of the significance of a particular input to
the fair value measurement requires judgment, and may affect the classification of fair value assets and liabilities within the fair value
hierarchy levels. Fair value measurements at August 31, 2009 are as follows:

(dollars in thousands)

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets
for Identical
Assets
(Level 1)

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

To t a l

Assets:
Readily marketable inventories
Commodity and freight derivatives

$706,104
$ 68,116

Short-term investments
Other assets
Total Assets

$706,104

103,224

171,340
$1,932

53,326

1,932
53,326

$121,442

$809,328

$ 27,145

$274,060

$1,932

$932,702

Liabilities:
Commodity and freight derivatives
Interest rate swap derivatives
Total Liabilities

Readily marketable inventories — The Company’s

$ 27,145

$301,205

4,911

4,911

$278,971

$306,116

readily marketable inventories primarily include its grain and

Short-term investments — The Company’s short-term
investments represent an enhanced cash fund at NCRA that

oilseed inventories that are stated at fair values. These com-

was closed due to credit-market turmoil, and are classified within

modities are readily marketable, have quoted market prices and
may be sold without significant additional processing. The Com-

Level 3. These investments are valued using discounted cash
flows to determine the fair market values.

pany estimates the fair market values of these inventories
included in Level 2 primarily based on exchange quoted prices,
adjusted for differences in local markets. Changes in the fair

Other assets — The Company’s available-for-sale invest-

market values of these inventories are recognized in the Com-

assets are valued based on unadjusted quoted prices on active

pany’s Consolidated Statements of Operations as a component
of cost of goods sold.

exchanges and are classified within Level 1.

ments in common stock of other companies and its Rabbi Trust

Interest rate swap derivatives — Fair values of the ComCommodity and freight derivatives — Exchange traded

pany’s interest rate swap liabilities are determined utilizing val-

futures and options contracts are valued based on unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets and are classified within Level 1.

uation models that are widely accepted in the market to value
such OTC derivative contracts. The specific terms of the con-

The Company’s forward commodity purchase and sales con-

tracts, as well as market observable inputs such as interest rates

tracts, flat price or basis fixed derivative contracts, ocean freight
contracts and other OTC derivatives are determined using

and credit risk assumptions, are input into the models. As all
significant inputs are market observable, all interest rate swaps

inputs that are generally based on exchange traded prices

are classified within Level 2.

and/or recent market bids and offers, adjusted for location
specific inputs, and are classified within Level 2. The location
specific inputs are generally broker or dealer quotations, or
market transactions in either the listed or OTC markets. Changes
in the fair values of these contracts are recognized in the
Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations as a component of cost of goods sold.
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liabilities, individually or in the aggregate, will not have a material
effect on the consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows of the Company during any fiscal year.

Fair Value
Measurements, continued

The Environmental Protection Agency has passed a regulation
that requires the reduction of the benzene level in gasoline by

The table below represents a reconciliation at August 31, 2009,

January 1, 2011. As a result of this regulation, the Company’s

for assets measured at fair value using significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3). This consists of the Company’s short-term

refineries will incur capital expenditures to reduce the current
gasoline benzene levels to the regulated levels. The Company

investments that were carried at fair value prior to the adoption

anticipates the combined capital expenditures for the Laurel,

of SFAS No. 157 and reflect assumptions a marketplace participant would use.

Montana and NCRA refineries to be approximately $134 million,
of which $33 million has been spent through August 31, 2009.

Other Litigation and Claims

(dollars in thousands)

Balance, September 1, 2008
Realized/unrealized losses included in marketing,
general and administrative expense
Settlements

$ 6,900

claims and disputes, which are in the normal course of the
(643)
(4,325)

Balance, August 31, 2009

$ 1,932

SFAS No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities”, provides entities with an option to report
financial assets and liabilities and certain other items at fair
value, with changes in fair value reported in earnings, and
require additional disclosures related to an entity’s election to
use fair value reporting. It also requires entities to display the fair
value of those assets and liabilities for which the entity has
elected to use fair value on the face of the balance sheet.
SFAS No. 159 was effective for the Company on September 1,
2008, and the Company made no elections to measure any
assets or liabilities at fair value, other than those instruments
already carried at fair value.

13

Company’s business. The resolution of any such matters may
affect consolidated net income for any fiscal period; however,
management believes any resulting liabilities, individually or in
the aggregate, will not have a material effect on the consolidated
financial position, results of operations or cash flows of the
Company during any fiscal year.

Grain Storage
As of August 31, 2009 and 2008, the Company stored grain for
third parties totaling $283.0 million and $357.4 million, respectively. Such stored commodities and products are not the property of the Company and therefore are not included in the
Company’s inventories.

Guarantees
The Company is a guarantor for lines of credit for related companies. The Company’s bank covenants allow maximum guarantees of $500.0 million, of which $17.3 million was outstanding

Commitments and
Contingencies

Environmental
The Company is required to comply with various environmental
laws and regulations incidental to its normal business operations. In order to meet its compliance requirements, the Company establishes reserves for the probable future costs of
remediation of identified issues, which are included in cost of
goods sold and marketing, general and administrative expenses
in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. The resolution of
any such matters may affect consolidated net income for any
fiscal period; however, management believes any resulting
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The Company is involved as a defendant in various lawsuits,

on August 31, 2009. The underlying loans to the listed counterparties, for which we provide guarantees, are current as of
August 31, 2009.

The Company’s guarantees for certain debt and obligations under contracts for its subsidiaries and members as of August 31, 2009
are as follows:

E nt it ie s

( dol la rs in t h ou sa nds )
Guarantee/
Exposure on
Maximum
August 31,
Exposure
2009

Mountain Country, LLC

$

150

Morgan County Investors, LLC

$

370

Horizon Milling, LLC

7

Expiration Date

Triggering
Event

Recourse
Provisions

Assets Held
as Collateral

Obligations by
Mountain Country,
LLC under credit
agreement

None stated, but
may be terminated
upon 90 days prior
notice in regard to
future obligations

Credit
agreement
default

Subrogation
against
Mountain
Country, LLC

Some or all assets
of borrower are
held as collateral
and should be
sufficient to cover
guarantee exposure

Obligations by
Morgan County
Investors, LLC
under credit
agreement

When obligations
are paid in full,
scheduled for year
2018

Credit
agreement
default

Subrogation
against
Morgan
County
Investors, LLC

Some or all assets
of borrower are
held as collateral
and should be
sufficient to cover
guarantee exposure

$ 5,000

Indemnification and
reimbursement of
24% of damages
related to Horizon
Milling, LLC’s
performance under
a flour sales
agreement

None stated, but
may be terminated
by any party upon
90 days prior notice
in regard to future
obligations

Nonperformance
under flour sales
agreement

Subrogation
against
Horizon
Milling, LLC

None

TEMCO, LLC

$35,000

Obligations by
TEMCO, LLC under
credit agreement

None stated

Credit
agreement
default

Subrogation
against
TEMCO, LLC

None

TEMCO, LLC

$ 1,000

Obligations by
TEMCO, LLC under
counterparty
agreement

None stated, but
may be terminated
upon 5 days prior
notice in regard to
future obligations

Nonpayment

Subrogation
against
TEMCO, LLC

None

1,000

Surety for, or
indemnificaton of
surety for sales
contracts between
affiliates and sellers
of grain under
deferred payment
contracts

Annual renewal on
December 1 in
regard to surety for
one third party,
otherwise none
stated and may be
terminated by the
Company at any
time in regard to
future obligations

Nonpayment

Subrogation
against
affiliates

Some or all assets
of borrower are
held as collateral
but might not be
sufficient to cover
guarantee exposure

Obligations by
individual
producers under
credit agreements
for which CHS
guarantees a
certain percentage.
Obligations are for
livestock production
facilities where CHS
supplies the
nutrition products

Various

Credit
agreement
default by
individual
producers

Subrogation
against
borrower

None

Loans made by
Cofina Financial to
our customers that
are participated
with other lenders

None stated

Credit
agreement
default

Subrogation
against
borrower

Some or all assets
of borrower are
held as collateral
but might not be
sufficient to cover
guarantee exposure

Indemnity of RLI
Insurance Company
as surety for bonds
issued by the
surety in favor of
Agriliance LLC as
principal

None stated

Agriliance
default under
the bond

Subrogation
against
Agriliance LLC

None

Outstanding letter
of credit from
CoBank to
Agriliance LLC

None stated

Default under
letter of credit
reimbursement
agreement

Subrogation
against
borrower

None

Vehicle operating
lease obligations of
Agriliance LLC

None stated, but
may be terminated
upon 90 days prior
notice in regard to
future obligations

Lease
agreement
default

Subrogation
against
Agriliance LLC

None

Third parties

$

Nature Of
Guarantee

370

*

Third parties

$

815

815

Third parties

$16,500

9,830

Agriliance LLC

$

101

101

Agriliance LLC

$ 4,674

4,674

Agriliance LLC

$

500

500

$17,297

* The maximum exposure on any given date is equal to the actual guarantees extended as of that date, not to exceed $1.0 million.
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14

Commitments and
Contingencies, continued

Lease Commitments

Supplemental Cash Flow
and Other Information

The Company is committed under operating lease agreements

Additional information concerning supplemental disclosures of
cash flow activities for the years ended August 31, 2009, 2008

for approximately 2,000 rail cars with remaining terms of one to
ten years. In addition, the Company has commitments under

and 2007 is as follows:

other operating leases for various refinery, manufacturing and

(dollars in thousands)

transportation equipment, vehicles and office space. Some
leases include purchase options at not less than fair market

2009

2008

2007

$ 81,146

$ 79,590

$ 52,323

75,530

11,226

(20,274)

Capital equity
certificates exchanged
for Preferred Stock

49,944

46,364

35,899

Capital equity
certificates issued in
exchange for Ag
Business acquisitions

19,594

4,680

10,132

Accrual of dividends
and equities payable

(203,056)

Net cash paid (received)
during the period for:
Interest

value at the end of the lease terms.

Income taxes

Total rental expense for all operating leases, net of rail car
mileage credits received from railroad and sublease income,
was $61.1 million, $58.3 million and $44.3 million for the years
ended August 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively. Mileage
credits and sublease income totaled $1.3 million, $3.8 million
and $3.9 million for the years ended August 31, 2009, 2008 and
2007, respectively.
Minimum future lease payments, required under noncancellable
operating leases as of August 31, 2009 are as follows:

(dollars in
thousands)

Rail Cars

Equipment
and
Ve h i c l e s
Other

$12,175

2011

10,354

14,425

7,735

32,514

2012

7,830

10,585

6,547

24,962

2013

5,473

6,520

4,632

16,625

2014

3,412

2,966

2,714

9,092

Thereafter

9,612

867

10,225

20,704

Total minimum
future lease
payments

$22,676

$ 8,448

To t a l

2010

$ 43,299

Other significant noncash
investing and financing
transactions:

15

$58,039

$40,301

$147,196

(374,294)

Related Party
Transactions

Related party transactions with equity investees as of August 31,
2009 and 2008 and for the years then ended are as follows:
(dollars in thousands)

$48,856

(325,039)

2009

2008

$2,528,330

$3,451,365

1,215,786

1,248,436

Receivables

14,987

105,038

Payables

30,741

90,742

Sales
Purchases

The related party transactions were primarily with TEMCO, LLC,
Horizon Milling, LLC, United Harvest, LLC, Ventura Foods, LLC
and Agriliance LLC. In addition, the Company had transactions
with Cofina Financial, LLC in fiscal 2008.
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Comprehensive Income

The components of comprehensive income, net of taxes, for the years ended August 31, 2009, 2008 and 2007 are as follows:
(dollars in thousands)

Net income

2009

2008

2007

$381,407

$803,045

$756,723

Pension and other postretirement, net of tax benefit $49,034, $11,272 and $759 in 2009,
2008 and 2007, respectively

(75,664)

(17,264)

(1,193)

Unrealized net (loss) gain on available for sale investments, net of tax (benefit) expense of
$(6,687), $(40,979) and $41,722 in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively

(10,503)

(64,366)

65,533

Amortization of treasury locks, net of tax expense (benefit) of $258, $297 and $(65) in 2009,
2008 and 2007, respectively

405

465

Energy derivative instruments qualified for hedge accounting, net of tax benefit of $1,787 in
2007

(2,806)

Foreign currency translation adjustment, net of tax (benefit) expense of $(1,570), $56 and
$588 in 2009, 2008 and 2007, respectively

(2,466)

Other comprehensive (loss) income
Total comprehensive income

(102)

(88,228)
$293,179

87
(81,078)
$721,967

921
62,353
$819,076

The components of accumulated other comprehensive income, net of taxes, as of August 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:
(dollars in thousands)

Pension and other postretirement, net of tax benefit of $101,187 and $52,153 in 2009 and 2008,
respectively
Unrealized net gain on available for sale investments, net of tax expense of $681 and $7,368 in 2009 and
2008, respectively
Treasury locks, net of tax benefit of $843 and $1,101 in 2009 and 2008, respectively
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net of tax expense of $757 and $2,327 in 2009 and 2008,
respectively
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

2009

$(157,204)

2008

$(81,540)

1,070

11,573

(1,324)

(1,729)

1,188
$(156,270)

3,654
$(68,042)
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Board of Directors

our team
CHS directors are agribusiness professionals elected by CHS member-owners
and represent diverse agricultural, financial and cooperative experiences.

Michael Toelle, chairman (elected 1992;
chairman since 2002): Chairman of CHS

Foundation. Served more than 15 years
as director and chairman of Country Partners Cooperative of Browns Valley, Minn.,
and its predecessor companies. Serves
as CHS representative on the Nationwide
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Insurance sponsors committee; serves
on the 25x’25 Renewable Fuels Steering
Committee; has served as director and
chairman of Agriculture Council of America; and is active in several cooperative
and commodity organizations. Holds a
bachelor’s degree in industrial technology
from Moorhead (Minn.) State University.
Operates a grain, hog and beef farm near
Browns Valley, Minn.

and past board secretary for North Dakota
Farmers Union and Farmers Union Mutual
Insurance Company. Serves on North
Dakota Coordinating Council for Cooperatives and advisory board for Quentin
Burdick Center for Cooperatives. Served
two terms in the North Dakota House of
Representatives. Raises small grains near
Glenburn, N.D.

Robert Bass, first vice chairman (1994):

(1990): Chairs Corporate Responsibility

Chairman of Audit Committee. Director
and officer for the former Co-op Country
Partners Cooperative, Baraboo, Wis., and
its predecessors for 15 years and director
of Cooperative Network. Holds a bachelor’s
degree in agricultural education from the
University of Wisconsin–Madison. Operates
a crop and dairy operation near Reedsburg, Wis.

Committee. Served as director and chairman for Farmers Co-op Association, Canby,
Minn., and as vice chairman for Cooperative
Network. Holds a certificate in farm management from Canby Vocational-Technical
College. Operates a corn and soybean farm
near Minneota, Minn.

Bruce Anderson , secretary-treasurer
(1995): Chairman of Governance Commit-

tee. Vice chairman of North Dakota Agricultural Products Utilization Commission

Curt Eischens, second vice chairman

Randy Knecht , assistant secretarytreasurer (2001): Serves on Government
Relations and Corporate Responsibility
committees. Representative to CHS Managers Council. President of Four Seasons
Cooperative, Britton, S.D.; former director

Top row, left to right: Robert Bass, Bruce Anderson, Curt Eischens, Randy Knecht, Don Anthony, Dennis Carlson, Steve
Fritel, Jerry Hasnedl. Bottom row, left to right: David Kayser, James Kile, Greg Kruger, Michael Mulcahey, Richard Owen,
Steve Riegel, Dan Schurr, Duane Stenzel.

and chairman of Northern Electric Cooperative, and director of Dakota Value Capture Cooperative. Involved in local school,
government and civic organizations, plus
agricultural and cooperative associations,
including the American Coalition for Ethanol. Holds a bachelor’s degree in agriculture from South Dakota State University.
Operates a diversified crop farm and cattle
ranch near Houghton, S.D.
Don Anthony (2006): Serves on Audit and
CHS Foundation Finance and Investment
committees. Served as director and chairman for All Points Cooperative of Gothenburg, Neb., and Lexington (Neb.) Co-op Oil.
Former director for Farmland Industries.
Serves as chairman of Nebraska Beginning
Farm Board; and is a member of Ag Valley
Co-op, CHS Agri-Service Center, Ag Builders of Nebraska, Nebraska Farm Bureau
and Nebraska Corn Growers. Holds a bachelor’s degree in agricultural economics from
the University of Nebraska. Raises corn,
soybeans and alfalfa near Lexington, Neb.

Dennis Carlson (2001): Serves on Capital and CHS Foundation Finance and
Investment committees. Director and past
chairman of Farmers Union Oil Company,
Bismarck/Mandan, N.D., and is active in
several agricultural and cooperative organizations. Operates a diverse grain and
livestock operation near Mandan, N.D.
Steve Fritel (2003): Serves on Corporate
Responsibility and Government Relations
committees. Director for Rugby (N.D.)
Farmers Union Oil Co.; former director
and chairman for Rugby Farmers Union
Elevator; and member of the former CHS
Wheat Milling Defined Board. Director of
North Central Experiment Station Board
of Visitors; past member of the Adult Farm
and Ranch Business Management Advisory
Board; and member of numerous agricultural and cooperative organizations. Earned
an associate’s degree from North Dakota
State College of Science, Wahpeton. Raises
small grains, corn, soybeans and sunflowers near Barton, N.D.

Jerry Hasnedl (1995): Serves on Capital and

Government Relations committees. Former
chairman of CHS Wheat Milling Defined
Member Board. Former director and secretary for St. Hilaire (Minn.) Cooperative
Elevator and Northwest Grain. Member of
American Coalition for Ethanol and Cooperative Network, and serves on Minnesota
Sunflower Research and Promotion Council. Earned associate’s degree in agricultural economics and has certification in
advanced farm business from Northland
College, Thief River Falls, Minn. Operates
a diverse operation near St. Hilaire, Minn.,
which includes small grains, soybeans,
corn, sunflowers, malting barley, canola
and alfalfa.
David Kayser (2006): Serves on Governance and CHS Foundation Finance and
Investment committees. Past chairman of
South Dakota Association of Cooperatives,
and previously served on CHS Resolutions
Committee. Former director and chairman
for Farmer’s Alliance, Mitchell, S.D., and
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member of local school and township
boards. Raises corn, soybeans and hay
near Alexandria, S.D., and operates a cowcalf and feeder calf business.
James Kile (1992): Member of Governance
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agricultural, cooperative and civic organizations. Attended Minnesota State
University–Mankato and the University of
Minnesota–Waseca. Operates a grain farm
and raises beef cattle near Waseca, Minn.

and Government Relations committees.
Served nearly two decades as director and
chairman of St. John (Wash.) Grange Supply. Represents CHS on the Washington
State Council of Farmer Cooperatives and
Idaho Cooperative Council. Director and
secretary of SJE High School Foundation.
Holds a bachelor’s degree in agricultural
economics from Washington State University. Was employed in banking before
returning to St. John, Wash., to operate a
dryland wheat farm.

Richard Owen (1999): Serves on Governance and Government Relations committees. Director for Mountain View, LLC; president of Montana Cooperative Development
Center; and president of ArmorAuto, LLC.
Previously served as director and officer for
Central Montana Cooperative, Lewistown,
Mont., and its predecessor organization.
Holds a bachelor’s degree in agricultural
economics from Montana State University.
Raises small grains and specialty crops
near Geraldine, Mont.

Greg Kruger (2008): Serves on Government

Relations and Corporate Responsibility
committees. Chairman of Countryside
Cooperative, Durand, Wis., since its creation
in 1998, after more than a dozen years as a
cooperative director. Served two years each
on the CHS Resolutions and CHS Rules
and Credentials committees. Serves a
wide range of agricultural and local government roles, including as president of
Trempeleau County Farm Bureau and
chairman of the local land use planning
committee. Operates an 80-cow dairy and
crop enterprise near Eleva, Wis.

Steve Riegel (2006): Serves on Capital and
Government Relations committees. Director
and chairman of Dodge City (Kan.) Cooperative Exchange and its predecessor companies. Previously served as director and officer for Co-op Service, Inc., advisory director
for Bucklin (Kan.) National Bank and has
served on local school board. Attended
Fort Hays State University, majoring in
agriculture, business and animal science.
Operates a 300-head cow-calf and stocker
cattle operation, and raises irrigated corn,
soybeans, alfalfa, dryland wheat and milo
near Ford, Kan.

Michael Mulcahey (2003): Serves on

Dan Schurr (2006): Serves on Audit and

Capital and CHS Foundation Finance
and Investment committees. Served for
three decades as director and officer for
Crystal Valley Co-op, Mankato, Minn.,
and its predecessors. Has served as a
director and chairman for South Central
Federated Feeds, and is active in many

Government Relations committees. Served
as a director and officer for River Valley
Cooperative of Mt. Joy, Iowa. Serves on
Blackhawk Bank and Trust board, and audit
and trust committees. Served eight years
as director of Great River Bank and Trust.
Former local school board member and

active in numerous agricultural and community organizations. Named Iowa Jaycees
Outstanding Young Farmer in 2004. Holds
bachelor’s degree in agriculture from Iowa
State University. Raises corn, soybeans and
alfalfa near LeClaire, Iowa, plus owns and
manages a beef feedlot and cow-calf herd.
Duane Stenzel (1993): Serves on Audit Committee and is chairman of CHS Foundation
Finance and Investment Committee. Chairman of the former CHS Oilseed Processing
and Refining Defined Member Board. Active
in a wide range of agricultural and cooperative organizations. Member of WFS and
Wells Farmers Elevator, where he served as
board president and secretary. Raises soybeans, corn and sweet corn near Wells, Minn.

Management Team

John Johnson, president and chief executive officer. Began his career with the former
Harvest States in 1976 as a feed consultant
in the GTA Feeds Division and later became
regional sales manager, director of sales
and marketing, and general manager of
GTA Feeds. Named group vice president
of Harvest States Farm Marketing & Supply
for Harvest States Cooperatives in 1992,

and president and CEO of Harvest States
in 1995. Selected president and general
manager of CHS upon its creation in 1998
and was named president and CEO in 2000.
Serves on the boards of Ventura Foods,
LLC; CF Industries Holdings, Inc.; National
Council of Farmer Cooperatives; and the
Greater Twin Cities United Way. Holds a
degree in business administration from
Black Hills State University, Spearfish, S.D.
Jay Debertin, executive vice president and
chief operating officer, Processing. Joined

CHS in 1984 in its energy division and held
positions in energy marketing operations.
Named vice president of crude oil supply
in 1998 and added responsibilities for raw
material supply, refining, pipelines and terminals, trading and risk management, and
transportation in 2001. Named to his current
position in 2005, where he is responsible
for oilseed processing operations and CHS
joint venture relationships in wheat milling
through Horizon Milling, LLC, and vegetable
oil-based foods through Ventura Foods,
LLC. Responsible for CHS strategic direction in renewable energy. Serves on the
boards of National Cooperative Refinery
Association, Ventura Foods and Horizon
Milling. Earned a bachelor’s degree in economics from the University of North Dakota
and a master’s of business administration
degree from the University of Wisconsin–
Madison.
Patrick Kluempke, executive vice president,
Corporate Administration. Responsible for

human resources, information technology,
business risk control, building and office
services, along with board coordination,
corporate planning and international rela-

tions. Served in the U.S. Army with tours in
South Vietnam and South Korea as an aide
to General J. Guthrie. Named to current
position in 2000. Began his career in grain
trading and export marketing. Serves on the
board of Ventura Foods, LLC. Graduated
with honors from St. Cloud (Minn.) State
University.
Thomas Larson, executive vice president,
Business Solutions. Began his career as
a vocational agriculture teacher and later
joined the former Cenex in agronomy
sales. Managed a local cooperative in
Hoffman, Minn., then returned to Cenex
to hold positions in marketing, planning,
agronomy services and retail operation
management. Named to his current position in 2005. Responsibilities include Ag
States Group; Country Hedging, Inc.; and
Cofina Financial, LLC; along with business
solutions consulting, communications, public and governmental affairs, and the CHS
Foundation. Serves on the boards of Cofina
Financial, Ag States Group, Norick and
Country Hedging. Received the National
FFA Organization’s Honorary American
Farmer Degree in 2006. Holds a bachelor’s
degree in agricultural education from South
Dakota State University.
Mark Palmquist, executive vice president
and chief operating officer, Ag Business.

Joined the former Harvest States in 1979
as a grain buyer, then moved into grain
merchandising. Named vice president and
director of grain marketing in 1990 and
senior vice president in 1993. Assumed
his current responsibilities for grain, crop
nutrients and country operations businesses in 2005. Serves on the boards of

Agriliance LLC and Multigrain AG. Graduated from Gustavus Adolphus College, St.
Peter, Minn., and attended the University
of Minnesota MBA program.
John Schmitz, executive vice president and
chief financial officer. Joined the former

Harvest States Cooperatives in 1974. Held
accounting and finance positions within
the company, including division controller. Named vice president and controller
in 1986 and became CFO for CHS in 1999.
Holds a bachelor’s degree in accounting
from St. Cloud (Minn.) State University.
Member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Minnesota
Society of Certified Public Accountants
and the National Society of Accountants
for Cooperatives. Serves on the boards of
National Cooperative Refinery Association
and Multigrain AG.
Leon Westbrock, executive vice president
and chief operating officer, Energy. Joined

the former Cenex in 1976 in merchandising and managed local cooperatives in
North Dakota and Minnesota. Returned to
Cenex to hold various positions, including
lubricants manager, director of retailing
and executive vice president of energy for
what is now CHS. Named to his current
position in 2000. Chairman of the National
Cooperative Refinery Association; former
director for Agriliance LLC and Universal
Cooperatives. Named 2009 Agribusiness
Leader of the Year by National Agri-Marketing Association. Holds a bachelor’s degree
from St. Cloud (Minn.) State University and
serves on the St. Cloud State University
Foundation Board of Directors.

Left to right: Jay Debertin, Patrick Kluempke, Thomas Larson,
Mark Palmquist, John Schmitz, Leon Westbrock.
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our appreciation
CHS extends its deepest appreciation to the customers, business partners,
employees and potential future employees who lent their perspectives
to this annual report.
Building the CHS Brand: Ashley Guenther, Kansas State University (KSU)
student and CHS marketing communications intern; KSU administrators Dave
Lambert and Fred Cholik; KSU student
Aaron Sylvester; professors David Barton
and Michael Boland of the Arthur Capper
Cooperative Center; Seleise Barrett.
Making Strategic Acquisitions: Glenn
Lutteke, All-American Co-op, Stewartville,
Minn.; Mark Schwanbeck and Greg Smith,
Farmers Co-op Elevator, Rushford, Minn.;
Jeff Kuhn and the staff of CHS Winona River
& Rail, Winona, Minn.; Lynn Larsen and
Kevin Rademacher, CHS Crop Nutrients.
Growing Our Global Footprint: Viktor
Sokha and Dmitriy Zhminko, Dnipro Cargo
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Limited, Kherson, Ukraine; Vitaliy Poterukha and staff, Avlita Stevedoring Company, Sevastopol, Ukraine; Vyacheslav
Tsybulsky and Alexander Filinov, Agromarket LTD/ACG, Novorossiysk, Russia; Igor
Andreev, Novorossiysk Grain Terminal;
Vladimir Bovin, Agrico, Moscow, Russia;
Julia Borokh, Alexsandr Obydin and staff,
Agro firm Zolotaya Niva, LLC, Stavropol,
Russia; Nikolai Chepurko and Aleksander
Kuzmenko, Urozhayninskiy KHP, Ukraine;
Vladimir Yukhanov and staff, Olimpex,
Odessa, Ukraine; Alexey Korolkov, CHS
Russia; Claudio Scarrozza and Alex “Key
Grip” Hanson, CHS Europe, Geneva; Luigi
Pasini, Oleg Kolisnyk, Yuri Sidorenko,
Bogdana Gavrelyuk, Sergey Lebedev
and all our colleagues with CHS Ukraine.

Maximizing Current Businesses:
David Parker, Daren Parker and the staff
of Parker Gas Co., Newton Grove, N.C.;
Darin Hunhoff, D.J. Williams and Steve
Secory, CHS Propane; John Hudson,
tobacco producer.
Creating Enterprise Value: John Bender
and staff, Superior Ag, Huntingburg, Ind.;
Tim Chamberlain, Princeton, Ind.; Perry
Township Fire and Rescue team, Ben
Bakko and Nate Durako, Wabash Valley
Grain, Princeton, Ind.; Ron Sibert, CHS
Business Solutions Consulting; Rick
Small, Ag States Group/Daeske Insurance,
Indianapolis, Ind.; Don Phelan, Country
Hedging, Inc., Indianapolis, Ind.; Tim
Novak, Cofina Financial, LLC.

o u r co m pa n y

2 0 0 9 chs a n n u a l r e p o r t

CHS (chsinc.com) is a diversified energy, grains and foods company committed to providing the essential resources
that enrich lives around the world. A Fortune 200 company, CHS is owned by farmers, ranchers and cooperatives, along
with thousands of preferred stockholders across the United States. CHS supplies energy, crop nutrients, grain, livestock
feed, food and food ingredients, along with business solutions including insurance, financial and risk management
services. The company operates petroleum refineries/pipelines and manufactures, markets and distributes Cenex®
brand fuels, lubricants, propane and renewable energy products. CHS is listed on the NASDAQ at CHSCP.
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Our vision

O u r Va l u e s

To be an integrated energy and grain-based foods

Our tradition of partnership and shared success

system innovatively linking producers with consumers.

Building lasting and rewarding customer relationships
Managing our business with the highest integrity

Our m ission

Being responsible stewards in our communities

To grow company profitability and stakeholder value.

Our people and their innovative spirit

This document contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 that are based on management’s
current expectations and assumptions. These forward-looking statements are subject to certain risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ
materially from the potential results discussed in the forward-looking statements. The company undertakes no obligations to publicly revise any forward-looking
statements to reflect future events or circumstances. For a discussion of additional factors that may materially affect management’s estimates and predictions,
please view the CHS Inc. annual report filed on Form 10-K for the year ended Aug. 31, 2009, which can be found on the Securities and Exchange Commission
web site (www.sec.gov) or on the CHS web site www.chsinc.com.

Top, from left: CHS President and
CEO John Johnson with some of our
2009 interns. Mark Schwanbeck and
Mark Honsey, Farmers Co-op Elevator,
Rushford, Minn.; Kevin Rademacher,
CHS Crop Nutrients; and Greg Smith,
producer. Vladimir Bovin of Agrico in a
south Russia field. Bottom, from left: Oleg
Kolisnyk and Iryna Sizonchik, CHS Kiev,
Ukraine; Nikolai Chepurko and Aleksander
Kuzmenko, Urozhayninskiy KHP and Yuri
Sidorenko, CHS Ukraine; Producer Tim
Chamberlain and Ben Bakko, Wabash
Valley Grain, LLC; Tim Novak, Cofina
Financial, LLC.
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